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Ten.: +7 (727) 298-08-98

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Shareholder and Board of Directors of First Heartland Securities JSC

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of First Heartland Securities JSC
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2019, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).
QOur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Republic of Kazakhstan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the International Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended
31 December 2018 were audited by other auditors who expressed an unmodified
opinion on those statements on 24 April 2019.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary ta enable the preparation of consolidated financial
slalerments Lhal are free ltom maletial misslalement, whelher due lo raud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obfain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is:

ﬁ\..;; I
Ashley Clarke Sergﬁ%ﬂyev “‘3’?,,&&_,.. &7
Engagement Parlner Certified itor :
of the Republic of Kazakhstan,

Auditor's Qualification Certificate
No. M®-0000086 of 27 August 2012

KPMG Audit LLC

State License to conduct audit # 0000021 dated 6 December 2006 issued by the Ministry
of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhsrdn
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Consolidated Statement of Prefit or Loss and Other Comprelher

First Heartlund Securities Joint Stvch Company
wsive Income for the vear ended 31 December 2019

(in millions of Kazakhstani tenge uiless otherwise stated}

Interest income caloulated using the effective interest rate
Other interest ncome

Interest expense

Net interest income

Income from reduction of allowances for expected credit
losses/( credit loss expense)

Net interest income net of alowance for expected credit
losses

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expenses
Net fee and commission income

Gross insurance premiums written

Written premiums ceded to reinsurers

Net insurance premiums written

Change in the gross provisicn for unearmed preminms
Reinsurers’ share of change in the gross provision for
unearned preminms

Net earned insurance premiums

Insurance claims incurred

Reinsurers’ share of insurance ¢laims incurred

Insurance claims incurred, net of reinsurance

Change in gross insurance contract provisions

Change in reinsurers' share in insurance contract provisions
Net insurance claims incurred

Net loss on change in fair value of Ioans to customers
measured at fair value through profit or foss

Net gain on securities at fair value through profit or loss
Net gains from foreign currencies

Net gain/(loss) from derecognition of investment securities
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Other income

Other operating income

Loss on revaluation of property and equipment and
intangible assets

Loss on operations with derivatives

Other income from reversal of provisions
Personnel expenses

Qther general administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Giain on busmess combination

Profit before corporate income tax

Corporale incomne lax (expense)/benefit
Profif for the year

Profit due;

— 10 the shareholders of the Group
—non—conirolling shareholders

Note
8
8
g

10
11

12
12
12

12

13
13
13
13

14

15
16

17

2019 2018*
119,208 8,680
10,441 67
(62,463) {3,463)
67,186 5,284

1,594 (2}
68,780 5,282
11,625 590
{5,095) {100)

6,530 490

6,406 _
(1,521) —

4,885 -

(345) -
(461) -
4,079 -
(1,322) -
145 —
(L,177) -
(835) -
949 —
(1,063) -
(416) -
627 -
8,824 411
1,366 (i8)
29 23
10,430 416
(1,240) -
(992) -
3,058 -
(23,609) (2,976)
(22,411) (983)
(45,194) (3,959)
243,690 -
287,252 2,229
(9,457) 118
277,795 2,347
277,765 2,347
30 —

* The Group has initially applied I'RS 16 Leases (“TFRS 16™) at | January 2019, using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative information is not restated. See Note 3.

The notes set out on pages 13 to 107 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



First Heartland Securities Joint Stock Company
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in millions of Kazakhstani tenge unless otherwise stated)

Note 2019 2018

Other comprehensive income

Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss:

— Net change in fair value of debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income 5,360 (18)

— Change in allowances for expected credit losses of debt
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income 121 -

— Amount reclassified to profit or loss as a result of
derecognition of investment securities measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (1,366) 18

Foreign currency differences arising on translation of
foreign operations 649 -

Total items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss 4,764 -

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss

— Revaluation reserve for property and equipment, net of tax
KZT 167 million (Note 24) 837 -

Total items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss 837 -

Other comprehensive income for the year 5,601 -

Total comprehensive income for the year 283,396 2,347
Profit due:

— to the shareholders of the Group 283,366 2.347
—non—controlling shareholders 30 —

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share, in KZT 35 36,204 1,813

Signed and authorised for issue on behalf of the Management Board of the Group:

N @)A

Yevgemy Pan Assel Kazbek
Chairman of the Manage Chief accountant
Roard

24 Apiil 2020

The notes set out on pages 13 to 107 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



First Heartlaid Securities Joint Stock Company
Consolidated Siatement of Financial Fosition as af 31 December 2019

(in millions of Kazakhstani tenge unless otherwise stated)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Derivative financial instruments

Amounis due from banks and other financial institutions
Securities measured at fair value through profit or loss
Investment securities

Loans to customers

Promigsory notes from the Ministry of Finance of the
Republic of Kazakhstan (‘MFRK”)

Insurance premiums and reinsurance assets
FProperty, equipment and intangible assets
Non—current assets held for sale
Investment property

Current income tax asset

Deferred tax asset

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Amounts due to banks and other financial institutions
Amounts payable under repurchase agreements
Derivative financial liabilities

Amounts due to cusiomers

Debt securities issued

Subordinated debt

Lease Habilities

Current income tax liability

Deferred tax liability

Insurance contract provisions

Qther liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Share capital

Treasury shares

Revaluation reserve for property and equipment
Fair value reserve

Foreign currency translation reserve

Retained camings

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

* The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 Leases (*IFRS 16"} at 1 Janvary 2019, using the modified

Note

18
19
20
21
22
23

24
25
26

17
27

28
29
19
30
31
32

17

33

34
34

31 December 31 December
2019 2018*

301,431 55,238
13 34

3,548 -
14,126 5,623
609,535 104,669
414,651 39
70,241 -~
3,313 -
54,392 2,008
9,144 -
5,590 150
644 66

2,429 -
18,928 243
1,507,985 168,070
9,836 -
6,293 -

42 -
791,624 143,884
148,604 -
72,950 -
4,489 -

46 43

73,522 169
5,959 -
19,329 1,528
1,132,694 145,724
89,937 19,935
(149) (149)

837 -

4,115 -

649 -
279,902 2,560
375,291 22,346
1,507,985 168,070

retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative information is not restated. See Note 3.

The nates set out on pages 13 to 107 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



First Heartland Securities Joimt Stock Company
Cansolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in millions of Kazakhstani tenge unless otherwise stated)

Note 2019 2018*
Cash flows from operating activities
Interest receipts 83,271 6,991
Interest payments (49,336) (2,989)
Fee and commission receipts 11,454 598
Fee and commission payments {4,963) (100)
Insurance premiums received 6,183 -
Insurance premiums paid to reinsurers (2,300) -
Net insurance claims paid (1,165) -
Realised gains from dealing in foreign currencies 6,030 151
Payments on financial derivative operations {2,034) -
Other income receipts 1,630 21
Personnel and other general administrative expenses paid (42,557) (2,481)
Net (increase)/decrease in operating assets
Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions 8,075 -
Securities at fair value through profit or loss 2,747 {4,407)
Loans to custormers 34,731 25
Other assets 8,683 &9
Net (decrease)/ increase in operating liabilities
Amounts due fo banks and other financial institutions (17,557) -
Amounts payable under repurchase agreements (93,207) (769}
Amounts due to customers 63,842 50,763
QOther Liabilities {6,148) -
Net cash flows from operating activities before income
tax paid 1,877 47,714
Income tax paid (421} -
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,456 47,714
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash and cash equivalents acquired due to acquisition of
snubsidiary 672,696 -
Acquisition of non—controlling interest (64) —
Purchase of investment securities measured at amortised
cost (4,361,054) {1,250,728)
Sale and repayment of investment securities measured at
amortised cost 4,246,474 1,149,498
Purchases of investment securities measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income {601,409} (142,598)
Sale and repayment of investment securities measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income 311,401 141,749
Purohose of promissory notes of the Minisiry of Finance of
the Republic of Kazakhstan {70,196)
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets held for sale 188 -
Acquisition of properly and equipment and intangible assets (4,479) (157)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment and
intangible assets 146 -
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities 193,703 (102,236)

The notes set out on pages 13 fo 107 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statemenis



First Heartland Securities Joint Stock Company
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in millions of Kazakhstani tenge unfess otherwise stated)

Note 2019 2018*
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of subordinated debt 32 (15,159} -
Repayment of debt securities issued 31 (7.163) -
Repayment of lease liabilities 3 {1,406) -
Proceeds from issue of share capital 34 70,002 11,919
Repurchase of shares - (3,133)
Dividends paid to the Group’s shareholder (423) (36)
Net cash flows from financing activities 45,851 8,750
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 241,010 (45,772)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
-equivalents 5,190 5,779
Effect of expected credit losses changes on cash and cash
equivalents (7) (13)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 55,238 95,244
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18 301,431 55,238

* The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 Leases (“IFRS 16™) at 1 January 2019, using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative information is not restated. Ses Noze 3.

The notes set out on pages 13 to 107 form an integral part of these consolidated Jinancial statements
10
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First Heartland Secnrities Joint Stock Contpany
Nates to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2019

(in millions of Kazakhstani tenge unless otherwise stated}

General information
Organisation and operations

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of First Heartland Securities Joint
Stock Company (“JSC™) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group™)

The Company is registered and domiciled in the Republic of Kazakhstan, certificate of state registration of a
legal entity No. 44831910-06-A0, BIN 080340017099 issued on 3 April 2014 by the Department of Justice
of the Medeu District of the Department of Justice of Almaty. On 3 March 2018, ZIM Capital JSC was
renamed into First Heartland Securities JSC.

The core activities of the Company include broker and dealer activities on the securities market. The Company
has a license to carry out activities on the securities market No. 3.1.1.224 dd. 27 March 2018 issued by the
National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan (the “NBRK™).

The Group’s main subsidiary, First Heartland Jusan Bank JSC (the “Bank™), operates based on the general
license No.1.2.35/225/37 for banking and other operations and activities on securities market granted on
20 August 2019 by the NBRK. On 3 February 2020 the Bank’s license No.1.2.35/225/37 for banking and
other operations and activities on securities markect was re—issued due o changes in the legislation. ‘I'he
principal activities of the Bank are related to conducting commercial banking, lending, issuing guarantees,
deposit taking, customer accounts opening and maintenance, cash and settlement operations and operations
with securities and foreign exchange. The Bank is a member of the Kazakhstan Deposit Insurance Fund (the
{.KKDIF”).

The Company is registered at the following address: Dostyk Str, 162/A, Almaty, Republic of Kazakhstan,
050051.

Information on the Group’s structure included in these consolidated financial statements as at
31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 is presented below:

Ownership, %

Couniry Principal 31 December 31 December
Name of registration activity 2019 2018
First Heartland Jusan Bank Republic of
ISC Kazakhstan Banking 100.00 —
Russian
Plus Bank PJSC Federation Banking 100.00 —
Jusan Garant Insurance Republic of
Company JSC Kazakhstan Insurance activity 100.00 -
First Heartland Jusan Republic of Broker and dealer
Invest JSC Kazakhstan services 100.00 -
Republic of Doubtful and bad assets
OMAD Yug LLC Kazakhstan management 100.00 -
Republic of Doubtful and bad assets
OMAD Centre LLC Kazakhstan management 100.00 -
Republic of Investment portfolio
First Heartland Capital ISC Kazakhstan management 100.00 100.00
Republic of
First Heartland Bank JSC Kazakhstan Banking - 100.00

Sharcholders

As at 31 December 2019, the sole shareholder of the Company is Pioner Capital Invest, which owns 100% of
outstanding ordinary shares (31 December 2018: 97.22%) Tlie ullinate controlling party of the Company as
at 31 December 2019 is non-profit organization Private Fund “Nazarbayev Fund”, created exclusively to
support finaucial activilies of the aulonomous educational orgamzations ~ “Nazarbayev University” and
“Nazarbayev Intellectual Schools”, and their organizations (31 December 2018: autonomous educational
organization “Nazarbayev University”),

13
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First Heartlund Securities Joint Stock Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2019

(in millions of Kazakhstani tenge unless otherwise stated)

General information, continued

Shareholders, continued

Name Country Ownership interest
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Pioneer Capital Invest LLP Republic of Kazakhstan 100.00% 97.22%
Other shareholders Republic of Kazakhstan 0.00% 2.78%
100.00% 100.00%

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 were authorised for
release by the Management Board of the Company on 24 April 2020,

Kazakhstan business environment

The Group’s operations are primarily located in Kazakhstan. Consequently, the Group is exposed to the
economic and financial martkets of Kazakhstan, which display characteristics of an emerging market. The
legal, tax and regulatory frameworks continue development, but are subject to varying interpretations and
frequent changes which together with other legal and fiscal impediments contribute to the challenges faced
by entities operating in Kazakhstan. In addition, the first months of 2020 have seen significant global market
turmoil triggered by the outhreak of the COVID-19 virus {see Note 44). Together with other factors, this has
resulted in a sharp decrease in the oil price and the stock market indices, as well as a continuing depreciation
of the Kazakhstan Tenge. These developments are further increasing the level of uncertainty in the
Kazakhstan business environment.

The consolidated financial statements reflect management’s assessment of the impact of the Republic of
Kazakhstan business environment on the operations and the financial position of the Group. The aciual
business environment may differ from management’s assessiment.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (*IFRS*").

Basis for measurement

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except as stated in Nofe 3. For
example, financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL™) and at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCTP), financial derivatives, land and buildings and investment
property are stated at fair vaiue, and insurance liabilities are accounted for based on actuarial calculations.

Functional and presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries, except for Plus Bank PISC is the Kazakhstan
tenge ("KZT”) as, being the national currency of the Republic of Kazakhstan, it reflects the economic
substance of the majority of underlying events and circumstances relevant to them. The functional currency
of subsidiary Plus Bank PTSC is the Russian Rouble.

The KZT is also the presentation currency for the purposes of these consolidated financial slateinenls,

Financial information presented in KZT is rounded to the nearest million, unless otherwise stated.

Significant accounting policies
Changes in accounting policies

Accounting principles used in the preparation and presentation of the accompanying consolidated financial
slateruents correspond to those used in preparation of the Group’s cousolidated finaucial statements for 20 18,
except for application of the new standards effective from 1 J anuary 2019. The nature and impact of these
changes are considered below. The Group has not early adopted any other standards, interpretation or
amendments that have been issued but not yet effective,
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Significant accounting policies, continued

Changes in accounting policies, continued

IFRS 16 Leases

The Group has initially adopted IFRS 16 Leases from 1 January 2019.

IFRS 16 replaces existing leases IFRS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Mcentives and 8§1C—27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 sets out the principies for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under JAS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between
two types of leases: operating and finance leases. Thus, adoption of IFRS 16 did not have impact on the
accounting of lease contracts under which the Group acts as a lessor.

The Group applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial
application of I January 2019, Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumnlative
effect of initiaily applying the standard recognised at the date of initial application. The Group elected to nuse
the transition practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying IAS 17 and TERIC 4 at the date of initial application,

The Group also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date,
have & lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option (*short-term leases®), and lease
coniracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (‘low—value assets”).

On transition to IFRS 16, the Group has used & number of simplifications of a practical nature and has not
recognised right-of-use assets. In particular, the Group determined that the lease term ends within 12 months
of the date of initial application, such leases do not contain extension options, and the Group will not be
subject to significant economic penalties, if the Group fails to extend lease for the subsequent 12—month term.

Suntmary of new accounting policies

Set out below are the new accounting policies of the Group upon adoption of IFRS 16, which have been
applied from the date of initial application:

Group as g lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measyrement approach for all leases, except for short—term leases
and leases of low—value assets. The Group recoguises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right—of-
use assets representing the right fo use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recoguises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease Labilities. The cost of right—of—use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs ncwrred, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.

Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term,
the recogmsed night—of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its eslimaled
useful life and the lease term. Right—0f-use assets are subject to impairment,

Lease Habilitics

At the commencement date of the lcase, the Group 1ecoguises lease liabilitics measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in—
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease paymenis that depend on an
index or & rate. and amounts expecled (o be pald under rogidual value guaranteos.
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Significant acconnting policies, continued
Changes in accounting policies, continued
IFRS 16 Leases, contimied

Group as g lessee, continued

Lease Fabilities, continued

The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Group and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
the option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the leags
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, & change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in
the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Short—term leases and leases of low—value assets

The Group applies the short—term lease recognition exemption to its short—term leeses (i.e. those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or Jess from the commencement date and do not contain z purchase option).
The Group also applies the lease of low—value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that
are considered of low value (i.e. below USD five thousand). Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Group determines the lease term as the non—cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by au oplioi Lo extend the lease if it is reasonably certam to be exercised, or any periods covered by
an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for additional terms. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certzin to exercise the option to renew. That is, it considers
all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal, After the commencement
date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control and affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g. a change in
business strategy).

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated siatement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of cash Hflows

Set out below are the carrying amounts of the Group’s right—of-use assets and lease liabilities and the
movements during the period:

Lease
Right-of-use assets Habilities
Buildings Total
As at 31 December 2018 - -
Additions from business combinulion 4,007 4,007 (3,954}
New additions 1,579 1,579 {1,4%6)
Disposals (H 3 3
Medifications to lease terms (176) {176) 158
Depreciation expense (L,110) (1,110} -
Interest exponsc - - (487)
Payments - - 1,406
Effect of changes in exchange rate 133 133 (129)
As at 31 December 2019 4430 4,430 (4,489)
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Significant accounting policies, continued
Changes in accounting policies, continued
IFRS 16 Leases, continued

Operating lease — Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added fo the camrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Tax Treatments

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for corporate income taxes when fax freatments invelve
uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12 Jncome Taxes.

It does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include requireraents
relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Interpretation specifically
addresses the following:

*  Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately.
*  The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities.

*  How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates.

*  How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.

The Group determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or
more other uncertain tax treatments and uses the approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

Upon adoption of the Interpretation, the Group considered whether it has any uncertain tax positions,
particularly those relating to transfer pricing, The Company’s and the subsidiaries’ tax filings in different
Jurisdictions include deductions related to transfer pricing and the taxation authorities may challenge those
tax treatimments.

The Group determined, based on its tax compliance and transfer pricing study, that it is probable that its tax
treatments (including those for the subsidiaries) will be accepted by the taxation authorities. The adoption of
this Interpretation has no significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle
IFRS 3 Business combination

The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtains control of a business that is a Jjoint operation, it applies
the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages, including remeasuring previously held
interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint operation at fair value. In doing so, the acquirer remeasures
its entire previously held interest in the joint operation. An entity applies those amendments to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early adoption permitted.

These amendinents Lad no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as there is no
transaction where joint control is obtained.

IAS 12 Income Toxes

‘The amendments clarify that the income tax cousequences of dividends nre linked more directly Lo past
transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity
recognises the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity
according to where it originally recognised those past transnotions or events. An entily applies those
amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early adoption permitted,
When the entity first applies those amendments, it applies them to the income tax consequences of dividends
recognised on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period.
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Significant accounting policies, continued
Changes ir accounting policies, continued
Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle, continued
IAS 12 Income Taxes, continued

Since the Group’s current practice is in line with these amendments, they had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to
develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its
tended use or sale are complete, The entity applies the amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies those amendments. An entity
applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, witk early
adoption permitted.

Since the Group’s current practice is in line with these amendments, they had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the CGroup,

Basis for consolidation
Brisiness combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is the
date on which control is transferred to the Group,

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:
*  the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
*  the recognised amount of any non—controiling interests in the acquiree; plus

*  ifthe business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre~-existing equity interest in the
acquire; less

*  the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

When the excess is nepative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss,

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre~existing relationships.
Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs
in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred,

The Group elects on transaction-by-transaction basis whether to measure non—controlling interests at fair
value, or at their proportionate share of the recognised amount of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree,
at the acquisition date,

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controllod by the Group. The Group coubiols an entlly when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability (o affect those returns
through its power over the entity. '[he financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
Ginancial stalemonts from the date that couttol comnencos undl the date that control ceases, The accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the
Group. Losses applicable to the non—controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non—controlling
interests even if deing so causes the non—controlling interests to have a deficit balance.

Funds management

The Group manages and administers assets held in unit trusts and other investment vehicles on behalf of
investors. The financial statements of these entities are not included in these consolidated financial statements
except when the Group controls the entity.
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Significant accounting policies, continued
Basis for consolidation, continued
Acquisitions and disposals of non—controlfing interests

The Group accounts for the acquisitions end disposals of non-controlling interests as transactions with equity
holders in their capacity as equity holders, Any difference between the amount by which the non—controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to the owners of the parent.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra—group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra~group
transactions, are eliminated, Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity—accounted investees are
eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, Unrealised losses are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non—controlling interests

Non—controlling interests are measured at their propertionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at
the acquisition date,

Changes in the Group®s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group entities
at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the
functional currency at the foreign exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary
items is the difference between amortised cost in the [unclional currency at the beginning of the period,
adjusted for effective interest rate and payments during the period, and the amortised cost in foreign currency
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cutrencies that are measured at fair value are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value is determined. Non—
meonetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured based on historical cost
are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss, except for differences
arising on the retranslation of equity instruments (reclassified to financial assets) measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income and recognised in other comprehensive income,

As at 31 December 2019, the official exchange rate used for translation of foreign currency balances was
KZT 382.59 for 1 US Dollar (31 December 2018: KZT 384.20 for 1 US Dollar).

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries, Including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition, are transiated to tenge al the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of
foreign subsidiaries are translated to tenge at exchange rates at the dates of the {ransactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income, and presented in the foreign
currency translation Teserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the
cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of only pert of its interest in a subsidiary thal
includes a foreign operation while retaining control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is
reattributed to non—controlling interests.

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable 10 a foreign operation is neither planned
nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses arising from sach item form
part of a net investment in a foreign operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income, and
presented in the translation reserve in equity.
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Significant accounting policies, continued
Measurement of fair value

The Group measures financial instruments classified as at FEVTPL and FVOCI, and certain non—financial
assets such as land and buildings at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assst or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the Liability takes place either:

*  inthe principal market for the asset or liability: or
*  inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Liability.

The principal or the most advantagecus market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a
non—{inancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

*  Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

¢ Level 2: valuation models, in which significant assessment of fair value are based on inputs related to
the lowest level of hierarchy and are observable in the market cither directly or indirectly.,

*  Level 3: valuation models, in which significant assessment of fair value are hased on inputs not based
on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Recognition of income and expenses

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured, The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognised:

Interest income and expense

The Group calculates interest income on debt financial assets measured at amortised cost or at FVOCT by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit—impaired
assets. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying
amonat of the financial asset or financial lability. The calounlation takes into account all contractual terms of
the financial instrament (for example, prepayment option) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are
directly atiributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the elfective interest rate, but not future credit
losses. The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Group revises ils
estimates of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrving amount is calculated based on the otiginal eflfeclive
inferest rate and the change in carrying amount is recorded as interest income or expense.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired, the Group calculates interest income by applying the
effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no
longer credit—tmpaired, the Group reverts to caleulating interest income on a gross basis.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired (“POCI”) financial assets, the Group calculates interest income
by caleulating the credit-adjusted effective interest rate and applying that rate to the amortised cost of the
asset. The credit—adjusted effective interest rate is the interest rate that, at original recognition, discounts the
estimated future cash flows (including credit losses) to the amortised cost of the POCI assets,
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Significant accounting policies, continued
Recognition of income and expenses, continued
Interest income and expense, continued

Interest income on all financial assets at FVTPL is recognised using the contractual interest rate in “Other
interest income” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or
financial liability are included in the effective interest rate.

Other fee and commission income — including operations, guarantees and letters of credit and account
servicing fees — is recognised as the related services are performed.

Loan commitment fee shall be recognised on a straight—line basis over the term of related loan commitment
when granting a Ioan to the borrower under the loan commitment is not highly probable.

The contract with a customer, which resulted in a [ancial instrument recognised in the unconsolidated
financial statements of the Company, may be partially within the scope of IFRS 9 and partially within the
scope of IFRS 135. In this case, the Bank first applies IFRS 9 to separate and measure that part of the contract,
which is within the scope of TFRS § and then applies IFRS 15 to the remaining part of this contract.

Other fee and commission expenses relate mainly to transaction and service fees, which are expensed as the
services are received.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may eam
revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components
of the same Group); whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker to
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which
discrete financial information is available, The Group’s operations are highly integrated and constitute two
operating business segments — banking and insurance activity — for the purpeses of IFRS 8 Operating
Segments,

Financial assets and liabilities
Initial recognition
Date of recognition

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the trade date i.e. the
date that the Group commits to purchase the asset or liability. Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets and liabilities that require delivery of assets and labilities within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Initial measurement

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the contractual lerms and business
model used for managing instraments. Financial instraments are initially measured at their fair value, except
in the case of financial assets and financial liabililies 1ecorded at FVTPL, transaction costs are added to this
amount.

Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Group classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the
asset’s contractual terms, measured at cither:

*  amortised cost:

*  atFVOCI; or

* atbkVIPL.

The Group classifies and measures its derivative and trading portfolio at FVTPL. The Group may designate

financial instruments at FVTPL, if so doing eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition
inconsistencies.
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Significant accounting policies, continued

Financial assets and liabilities, continued

Initiel measurement, continned

Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities, continued

Financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and financial guarantees, are measured at amortised cost
or at FVTPL when they are held for trading, are derivative instraments or the fair value designation is applied.

Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions, logns to customers, invesiment securities at
amortised cost

The Group measures amounts due from hanks znd other financial institutions, loans to customers, and other
financial investments at amortised cost, only when both of the following conditions are met:

*  afinancial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows;

*  its contractual terms give rise on specified dates o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding (“SPPT),

These terms are detailed below.
Business model assessment

The Group determines its business mode! at the level that best reflecis how it manages groups of financial
assets to achieve its business objective.

The Group’s business model is not assessed at the level of individual instruments but at & higher level of
aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors, such as;

*  the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the cperation of those policies in practice. In
particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on garning coniractual interest revenue, maintaining
a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the
liabilities that are fanding those assets or realising cash flows through the saie of the assets;

*  how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reparted to the Group’s management;

*  the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how these risks are managed;

*  how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

*  thefrequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations
about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but
as part of an overall assessment of how the Group’s stated objective for managing the financial assets is
achieved and how cash flows are realised.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking “worst case” or
‘stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different
from the Group’s original expectations, the Group does not change the ciassification of the remaining
financial assets held in that business model but incorporates such information when assessing newly
originatod or newly purchased linaucial assets going forward,

SPP] test

As a second step of its classification process, the Group assesses the contractual terms of the financial asset
to identify whether they meet the SPPI test,

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition
and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or
atnorligation of the premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the
time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Group applies judgment and considers
relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the
interest rate is set.
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Significant accounting policies, continued
Finaxncial assets and Habilities, continued

Initial measurement, continned

SPPFJ test, continued

In contrast, contractual terms that infroduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the
contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial
asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.

Debt securities and promissory notes measured at FVOCI

The Group measures debt securities and promissory notes at FVQCI, if both of the following conditions are
met:

*  theinstrument s held within a business model which objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets;

*  contractual terms of the financial asscts comply with the SPPI test.

FVOCT debt securities and promissory notes are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising due to changes in fair value recognised in OCL Interest Income and gains and losses from foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised
cost. On derecognition, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in OCI are reclassified from OCI to
profit or loss.

Expected credit losses on debt securities and promissory notesat FVOCI will not decrease the carrying amount
of these financial assets in the statement of financial position that continue to be measured at fair value.
Instead, the amount equal to the allowance for expected losses that would be created when measuring the
asset at amortised cost is recognized in OCI as the cumulative amount of the impairment with the recognition
of corresponding amounts in profit or loss. The cumulative amount of losses recognised in OCI is reclassified
to profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Equity instruments at FYOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group occasionally elects to classify irrevocably some of its equity investments
as equity instruments at FVOC] when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments-
Presentation and are not held for trading, The classification is determined on an instrument-by—instrument
basis,

Gains aad losses on these equity instruments are never reclassified to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the right of the payment has been established, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are
recorded in OCI. Equity instruments at FVYOCI are not subject to an impainment assessment, Upon disposal
of such instraments, accumulated revaluation reserve is transferred to retained eamnings,

Financial guarantees, letters of credit and credit related commitments
The Group issues guarantees, letters of credit and credit related commitments.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements at fair value, being the premium
received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liability under each guarantee is measured at the
higher of the amount initially recognised less cumulative amo: Usalion recognised In the statement of profit
and loss and ECL allowance.

Credit related commitments and letters of credits are commitments under which, over the duration of the
commitment, the Group is requirted to provide a loan with pre specified terms to the customer Similar to
flnancial guarantee contracts, these contracts are in the scope of the ECI, requirements,

The Group occasionally issues commitments to provide loans at below-market interest rates. Such
commitments are initially recognised at fair value and subsequontly measured at (he higher of an BECL
allowance and the amonat initially recognised less cumulative income, where appropriate.
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Significant accounting policies, continued
Financial assets and liabilities, continued

Initial measurement, continued

Performance guarantees

Performance guarantees are contracts that provide compensation if another party fails to perform a contractual
obligation. Performance guarantees do not transfer credit risk. The risk under performance guarantee contracts
is the possibility that the failure to perform the contractual obligation by another party occurs. Therefore,
performance guarantees are not considered financial instruments and thus do not fall in scope of IFRS 9.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Group does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent fo their initial recognition, apart from the
exceptional circumstances in which The Group changes the business model for managing financial assets.
Fimancial liabilities are never reclassified. The Group did not reclassify any of its financial assets and
lighilities in 2019.

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, amount due from the NBRK,, and highly liquid
financial assets with original maturities of less than three months, which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in their fair vaiue, and are used by the Group in the management of short-term commitments, Cash
and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Receivables under repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending

Securities sold under sale and repurchase agreements (“repo”) are accounted for as secured financing
transactions. Securities sold under sale and repurchase agreements are retained in the statement of financial
position and in case the transferce has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge them, reclassified as
investment securities pledged under sale and repurchase agreements. The corresponding liabilities are
presented as accounts payable on repurchase agreements. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
{“reverse repo™) are recorded as cash and cash equivalents. The difference between sale and repurchase price
is treated as inferest and accrued over the life of repo agreements using the effective interest rate method,

Securities pledged under repo are retained in the statement of financial position. Securities borrowed are
recorded in the statement of financial position only if these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchase
and sale transaction is recorded within gains less losses from trading securities In the statement of income.
The obligation to return them is recorded as a trading liability and measured at fair value.

Derivative financial instruments

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into various derivative financial imstruments, including
futures, forwards, swaps and options) on currency markets and capital markets. Such financial instruments
are held for trading and are recorded at fair value. The fair values are estimated based on quoted market prices
or pricing models that take into account the current market and contractual prices of the underlying
instruments and other factors.

Derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when it is negative, Gains
and losses resulting from these instruments are included in the statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as “income/expense on operations with derivatives”.

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid contract that also includes a non—derivative host with the
effect that some of the cash tlows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand—alone
derivative. An emhedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by
the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,
[oreign exchange rate, mdex of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided that,
in the case of a non—financial variable, it is not specitic to a party to the contract, A derivative that is attached
to a financial instrument, but is contractually transferable independently of that instrument, or has a different
counterparty from that instrument, is not an embedded derivative, but a separate financial instrument.

Financial assets are classitied based on the business model and SPPI assessments,
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Significant accounting policies, continned
Finaneial assets and liabilities, continued

Initial measurement, continued

Borrowings

Issued separate financial instruments or their components are classified as liabilities, where the substance of
the contracmal arrangement results in the Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another
financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity instruments. Such instruments include amounts
due to banks and other financial institutions, amounts due to customers, debt securities issued, subordinated
debts and other borrowed funds. After initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss when liabilities
are derecognised, as well as through the amortisation process.

If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the consolidated statement of financial position and
the difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the consideration paid 1s recognised in profit
or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The right to set off if that right is not contingent on a future event and enforceable both in:

*  the normal course of business; and in
*+  the event of default and insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all counterparties,
Restructuring of loans to customers

Where possible, the Group seeks to restructure loans to customers rather than to take possession of collateral,
This may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions.

The Group assesses whether the modification is substantial based on quantitative and qualitative factors in
the following order: qualitative factors, quantitative factors, combined effect of qualitative and quantitative
factors. Assessment of the Group’s financial assets other then loans to customersis performed in a similar
way.

The Group derecognises a financial asset, e.g. a loan to a customer, if the related contractual terms are
renegotiated to the extent that it in fact becomes a new loan, and records the difference as gains or losses
arising from derecognition before impairment loss is recognised. Upon initial recognition the loans are
classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new loan is deemed to be POCL When
assessing, whether the loan to customer shonld be derecognised, the Group considers the following:

*  change the currency of the financial asset;
¢ the change of a counterparty (e.g. a borrower);

* the change of terms of financial asset that lead to non—compliance with SPPI eriterion
(e.g. inclusion of conversion feature);

*  combining and separaling loan agreements,

If the modification does not imply a substantial change in cash flows, such modification does not resulf in a
derecognition. Based on the changes in cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate, the Group
recognises gains or losses from the modification that are recorded within interest income caloulated using the
effective interest rate method in the statement of profit or loss before impairment loss is recognised,

If the modification does not result in derecognition, the Group also reassesses the significant increase in credit
tisk or the need to classify assets as credit-impaired. Afier the designation of an asset as credit-impaired as
a result of modification, it remains within Stage 3 for a probation period of at Ieast 6 months. To transfer a
restructured loan from Stage 3, regular payments of more than insignificant amounts of principal or interest
are needed during at least half of the probation period in accordance with the modified amortisation schedule.
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Significant accounting policies, continued
Impairment

The Group recognises ECL allowance for the following financial instruments that are not measured at
FVTPL:;

*  financial assets that are debt instruments;

*  financial guarantee contracts issued; and

*  loan commitments issued.

No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.

The Group measures ECL allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, for which
they are measured as 12-month ECL:

*  debt investment securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

*  other financial instruments on which credit risk has rot jncreased significantly since their initial
recognition,

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial instruments for which a 12-month ECL is
recognised are referred to as “Stage 1’ financial instraments.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
instrument. Financia] instruments, other than purchased or originated credit-impaired assets, for which a
lifetime ECL is recognised are referred to as ‘Stage 2’ financial instruments (if the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, but the financial instruments are not credit~impaired) and ‘Stage 3’
financial instruments (if the financial instruments are credit-impaired),

Measurement of ECL
ECL are a probability--weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

*  financial assets that are not credit-impaived at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects fo receive);

*  financial assets that are credit-impaived at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash fiows;

*  undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive; and

*  financial guarantee contracts: the present value of expected payments to reimburse the holder less any
amounts that the Group expects to recover,

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced with a
new one due W {inancial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether the financial
asset should be derecognised and ECL are measured as follows:

*  Ifthe expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected cash
tlows arising from the modified financial assel are included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the
existing asset,

*  Ilthe expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected fair value
of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its
derecognition. This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing financisl asset
that are discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date using the original
effective interest rate of the existing financial asset.

26



First Heartland Securities Joint Stock Company
Notes io the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2019

{in millions of Kazakhstani tenge unless otherwise stated)

Significant accounting policies, continued
Impairment, continued
Credit-impaired financial assets

Ateach reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt financial
assets carried at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit—impaired” when one or more events
that have a defrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that 2 financial asset is credit—impaired includes the following observable data;
*  significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
¢ abreach of contract such as a default or past due svent;

*  the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

*  itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or
*  the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrawer’s condition is usually considered to
be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractusl cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, a retail loan that is overdue for
90 days or more is considered impaired.

In making an assessment of whether an investment in sovereign debt (other financial assets) is credit—
impaired, the Group considers the following factors.

¢ The market’s assessment of creditworthiness as reflected i the bond yields.
*  The rating agencies’ assessments of creditworthiness,
*  The country’s ability to access the capital markets for new debt issuance.

*  The probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders suffering losses through voluntary or
mandatory debt forgiveness.

*  The international support mechanisms in place to provide the necessary support as ‘lender of last resort’
to that country, as well as the intention, reflected in public statements, of governments and agencies to
use those mechanisms. This includes an assessment of the depth of those mechanisms and, irrespective
of the political intent, whether there is the capacity to fulfil the required criteria.

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is derecognised from the statement of financial position where:

+  therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

*  the Group has transfemed its right to receive cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to
transfer the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass—through’
arrangement; and

¢ the Group either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of tho asset, but has transferred contiol of
the asset,

Where the Group has transferred ils rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continwing lnvolvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the Jower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Significant accounting policies, continued
Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets, continued

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash-settled
option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is the
amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except that in the case of a written put option
{including a cash—settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value. The extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option
exercise price,

Write off

Financial assets are written off in part or in full, only when the Group does not expect to recover their valye,
If the amount to be written off is higher than the accomulated tmpairment allowance, the difference is at first
recorded as the increase in the allowance that is subsequently applied to the gross carrying amount. All the
subsequent reversals are recognised as credit loss expenses, The write-off relates to the derecognition event,

Financial Kabiiities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing Hability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Govermment grants

Government grants are recognised when there is a reasonable assurance that they wil! be received and that
the conditions associated with the grants will be complied with. If a government grant is issued to finance
specific expenses, it is recognised us income on a systematic basis in the same periods in which costs, which
the grant is to compensate, are expensed. Such grants are deducted from the appropriate expenses when such
expenses are recognised in the consolidated financial statements,

Where the Group receives grants in the form of non—monetary assets, an asset and a grant are measured at
nominal value and recognised in profit or loss in equal parts, in accordance with the pattern of consumption
of the economic benefits embodied in the underlying asset over the estimated nseful live thereof.

The benefit of a government loan at a below—market rate of interest is treated as a government grant. Loan is
recognised and measured in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The benefit of the below—market
rate of interest is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan measured in
accordance with IFRS 9 and the proceeds received.

Property and equipment
Cwned assets

Items of property and equipment except for land and buildings are stated in the consolidated financial
statements at cost less accumulated amortisation and impaimment losses.

Where an ilew of property and equipment comprises major components having different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items of property and equipment.

The catrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when evenis or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Following initial recognition at cusl, land aud buildings are carried at a revalued amount, which is the fair
value at the dale of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluation is performed with sufficient frequency to avoid significant differences
between the fair value of a revalued asset and its carrying amount,
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Significant accounting policies, continued
Property and equipment, continued
Owned assels, continued

Accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amounnt of the
asset and the derived amount is restated based on the revalued amount of the asset. Any revaluation surplus
is credited to the revaluation reserve for property and equipment included in other comprehensive income,
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised within
profit or loss. In which case an increase in the asset is recognised in profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is
recoguised in profit or loss, except that a deficit directly offsetting a previous surplus on the same asset is
directly offset against the surplus in the revaluation reserve for property and equipment.

An annual transfer from the revaluation reserve for property and equipment to retained eamings is made for
the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the assets and depreciation
based on the assets original cost. Upon disposal, the relevant amount included within revaluation reserve is
transferred to retained earnings,

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
individual assets. Depreciation commences on the first day of the month following the acquisition date or, in
respect of interally constructed assets, on the first day of the month following the time an asset is completed
and ready for use. Land, construction—in—progress and assets to be installed are not depreciated. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Years
Buildings 25-100
Computer equipment 5-10
Vehicles 7
Other 2-20

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Costs related to repairs and renewals are charged when incurred and included in other operating expenses,
unless they qualify for capitalisation.

Intangible assets
Acquired intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Licenses, patients, trademarks and permits valid within 12 (twelve) months are accounted for by the Group
as deferred expenses,

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets. The estimated useful life is from 2 to 30 years.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but
not for sale in normal course of business, or for the use in production or supply of goods or services or for
adininistrative purposes. Investment property is measured at fair value.

Non—currenl assets held for sale

The Group classifies a non- current asset (or a disposal group) as held for sale if its carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case,
the non—current asset (or a disposal group) must be available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usnal and customary for sales of such assels (or a disposal gronp) and its sale
must be highly probable,

High probability of sale implies the Group management’s positive intent to foliow a plan (o sell the non
current asset (or a disposal group). In this case, it is necessary to start the program of active measures to search
for a buyer and fulfil this pian. In addition, a non—current asset {or a disposal group) must have been actively
marketed for a sale at price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value. In addition, the sale should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification of
the non—current asset {or a disposal group) as heild for sale.
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Significant accounting policies, continued
Non—current assets held for sale, continued

The Group measures the assets (or a disposal group) classified as held for sale at the lower of its carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. The Group recognises an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent
write-down of the asset (or a disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell if events or changes in circumstance
indicate that their carrying amount may be impaired.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation as a resnlt of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to setile the obligation, If the amount of such hability is significant, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre—tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Contingencies

Contingent Habilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position but are disclosed
unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote. Contingent assefs are not recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Liabilities on pensions and other employee benefits

The Group does not have any pension arrangements Separate from the State Pension Programme of the
Republic of Kazakhstan, which requires withholdings by the employer calenlated as a percentage from current
gross salary payments. Such withholdings are expensed in the period in which the related salaries are eamned
and are included in ‘Personnel expenses’ in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The Group makes social tax contributions for its employees to the budget of the
Republic of Kazakhstan. The Group has no post-retirement benefit obligations or commitments to pay.

Equity
Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares,
other than on a business combination, are recognised as a deduction equity net of any tax effects. Any excess
of the fair value of consideration received over the par value of shares issued is recorded as additional paid—
in capital.

Cumulative non-redeemable preference shares

The component of cumulative non-redeemable preference shares that exhibits characteristics of a liability is
recognised as a liability in the consolidated statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. The
corresponding comulative dividends on those shares are charged as interest expense in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. On issuance of cumulative non-redeemable
preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non—convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a long—term liability on the amortised cost basis yntil
extinguished on redemption.

Treasury shares

Where the Group or its subsidiaries acquire the Group’s shares, their cost, including related transaction COSts,
net of corporate incoms tax, is deducied fiom total equity as treasury shares and recorded as a deduction from
equity in the consolidated financial statements.

Dividends

The ability of the Group to declare and pay dividends is subjcct (o the rules and raguialions of the Kazakhstan
legislation.

Dividends are recorded as a liability and deducted from equity only if they were declared before or on the
reporting date. Dividends are disclosed when they are proposed before the reporting date or proposed or
declared after the reporting date but before the consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue.

Taxation

Corporate income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax_ It is recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.
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Significant accounting policies, continued
Taxation, continued

Current corporate income tax includes the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustments to
corporate income tax payable in respect of previous years. Current corporate income tax payable also includes
any tax liability arising from dividends.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the camying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

A, deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised.
Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of
future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected fo be applied to the temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax
assets and liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current income tax liabilities and assets on & net
basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

In determining the ameunt of current and deferred fax the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain
tax positions and whether additional taxes, penalties and late—payment interest may be due. The Group
believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many
factors, including interpretations of tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and
assumptions and may involve a series of judgments about future events. New information may become
available that causes the Group to change its judgment regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such
changes to tax liabilities will impact the tax expense in the period that such a determination is made.

Insurance contracts
Classification of contracts

Contracts under which the Group accepts significant insurance risk from another party (the “policyholder™)
by agreeing to compensate the policyholder or other beneficiary if a specified uncertain future event (the
“insured event”) adversely affects the policyholder or other beneficiary are classified as insurance contracts

Insurance risk is the risk other than financial risk, Financial risk is the risk of a possible future change in one
or more of a specificd interest rate, security price, comunodily price, forsipn exchange rate, index of prices or
rates, a credit rating or credit index or other variable, provided in the case of a non—financial variable that the
variable is not specific to a party o the coniract. Insurance coniracts may also transfer some financial risk.

Insurance risk is significant if, and only if, an insured event could cause (he Group (o pay significant additional
benefits. After the contract is classified as an insurance contract, it remains so until all rights and obligations
expire or are fulfilled.

Contracts under which the transfer of insurance risk to the (Group from the policyholder is not significan( are
clagsified as finaucial instiumenls.
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Significant accounting policies, continued
Insurance contracts, continned

Recognition and measurement of contracts
Premiums

General business premiums written comprise the premiums on contracts entered into during the year,
Irrespective of whether they relate in whole or in part to a later accounting period. Premiums are disclosed
gross of commission payable to intermediaries and exclude taxes and levies based on premiums. The earned
portion of premiurns received is recognised as revenme. Preminms are earned from the date of attachment of
risk, over the indemnity period, based on the pattern of risks underwritten. Outward reinsurance premiuims
are recognised as an expense in accordance with the pattern of reinsurance service received. The portion of
outward reinsurance premims not recognised is treated as a prepayment.

Provision for unearned premiums

The provision for unearned premiums comprises the proportion of gross premiums written which is estimated
to be earned in the following or subsequent financial years, computed separately for each insurance contract
using the daily pro-rata method, adjusted if necessary to reflect any variation in the incidence ol 1jsk during
the period covered by the contract.

Claims

Claims comprise claims and claim handling expenses paid during the financial year together with the
movement in the provision for outstanding claims.

Claims outstanding comprise provisions for the Group’s estimate of the ultimate cost of settling all cfaimsg
incurred but unpaid at the reporting date whether reported or not, and related internal and external claims
handling expenses. Claims outstanding are assessed by reviewing individual claims and making allowance
for claims incurred but not yet reported, the effect of both internal and external foreseeable events, such as
changes in claims handling procedures, legislative changes and past experience and trends, Provisions for
claims outstanding are not discounted.

Whilst management considers that the gross provisions for claims and the related reinsurance recoveries are
fairly stated on the basis of the information currently available to them, the ultimate liability will vary as a
result of subsequent information and developments and may result in significant adjustments to the amounts
provided. Adjustments to the amounts of claims provisions established in prior years are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements for the period in which the adjustments are made, and disclesed separately
if material. The methods used, and the estimates made, are reviewed regularly.

Reinsurance assety

The Group cedes reinsirance in the normal course of business for the purpose of limiting its potential net loss
through the diversification of its risks. Assets, liabilities, income and expense arising from ceded reinsurance
contracts are presented separately from the related assets, liabilities, income and expense from the related
insurance contracts because the reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Group from its direct obligations
to its policyholders,

Only rights under contracts that give rise to significant transfer of insurance risk are accounted for as
reinsurance assets. Rights under contracts that do not transfer significant insurance risk are accounted for as
financial nstruments,

Reinsurance premiums for ceded reinsurance are recognised as an expense on o basis that is consistent with
the recognition basis for the premiums on the related insurance contracts. For general insurance business,
reinsurance premiums are expensed over (he period that the reinsurance cover is provided based on the
expected pattern of the reinsured risks The unexpensed portion of coded reinsurance premiuiys is included
in reinsurance assets,

The net amounts paid to a reinsurer at the inception of a contract may be less than the reinsurance assets
recognised by the Group in respect of its rights under such contracts.

The amounls recogulsed a5 1eiusuraitce assels are measured on a basls that is consistent with the measurement
of the provisions held in respect of the related insurance contracts.

Reinsurance assets include recoveries due from reinsurance companies in respect of claims paid. These are
classified as reinsurers® share in insurance contract provisions in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Significant accounting policies, continued
Insurance contracts, continued
Reinsurance assels, continued

Reinsurance assets are assessed for impairment at each reporting date. An asset is deemed impaired if there is
objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after its initial recognition, that the Group may not
recover all amounts due, and that the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Group
will receive from the reinsurer,

Insurance acquisition costs

Insurance acquisition costs include direct costs such as commissions paid to insurance agenis and brokers
and indirect costs such as administrative expenses connected with the processing of proposals and the issuing
of policies. Insurance acquisition costs are expensed as inciured.

Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date, lisbility adequacy tests are performed to dstermine if the insuranee contract provisions
are adequate. Current best estimates of all future contractaal cash flows and related expenses, such as claims
handling expenses, and investment income from assets backing the insurance contract provisions are used in
performing these tests.

If 2 shortfall is identified, an additional provision is established, if necessary. The deficiency is recognised in
profit or loss for the year.

Insurance receivables and payables

Amounts due to and from policyholders, agents and reinsurers are financial instraments and are included in
insurance receivables and payables, and not in insurance contract provisions or reinsurance assets,

Standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2019 and earlier
application is permitted; however, the Group has not early adopted the new or amended standards in preparing
these financial statements,

The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements:

*  Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in JERS Standards,
*  Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3),

*  Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8).

»  [FRS 17 Insurance Confracts.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates
Estimation uncertainty

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management of the
Group to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from (hose
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Fair value of financial instruments

Whers the {ail values of financial assets and financial Labilities recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation
techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The input to these models is talcen fram obacrvable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values. Additional details are provided in Noie 43,
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates
Estimation uncertainty, continued
Fair value of property and equipment — land and buildings

The Group measures the fair value of land and buildings once every three years resulting from accounting for
land and buildings at revalued amount in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of land and buildings of the Group were determined by independent
appraisers. The valuation resulted in an increase in the carrying amounts of land and buildings by
KZT 1,093 million recognised within equity of the Group. Loss on revaluation of land plots and buildings in
the amount of KZT 1,240 million was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income,

Classification of loans to customers

As a part of classification process, the Group assesses the contractual terms of the loans to customers to
identify whether they represent solely payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding, To make
this assessment, the Group applies judgment and considers relevant factors such as asset performance and
project risk related to loans, non— or limited-recourse characteristics, the extent of equity participation by the
borrower, and the extent of other credit enhancements. Contractual terms that introduce a more than de
minimis exposure to tisks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending
arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the amount cutstanding. In such cases, the loan is classified at FVTPL.

Expected Credit Losses

The measurement of impairment losses under IFRS 9 across all categories of financial assets requires
Jjudgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values
when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk, These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of estimated
allowances. The Group's ECL calculations are outputs of compiex models with a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the BCL models
that are considered accounting judgements and estimates inchide:

- the Group’s internal credit grading model, which assigns probabilities of default (“PD”);

- the critena used by the Group, including qualitative assessments, for assessing if there has been a
significant increase in credit risk resulting in ECL for financial assets being measured on a lifetime basis;

- grouping of financial assets, including various formulas and choice of input data;

- determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and economic inputs such as
unemployment levels and collateral values, and the resulting effect on PD, exposures at default (“EAD”)
and losses given default (“L.GD");

- selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the
economic inputs into the ECL models.

Management of the Group monitors collateral on a regular basis. Management uses its judgments based on
experience or independent estimates to adjust the vahie of collateral to reflect current market conditions.

The amount of impairment allowance on loans to customers recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019 was KZT 510,276 million (31 December 2018 nil), Details are
disclosed in Note 23,

Tavation

The Republic of Kazakhstan currently has a single Tax Code that regulates main taxation matters. The existing
taxes include value added tax, corporate income tax, social and others taxes, Implementing regulations are
often unclear or a non-existent or insignificant amoumt of precedents has been established. Often, differing
cpinions regarding legal interpretation exist both among and within government ministries and organisations;
thus creating uncertainties and areas of conflict. Tax declarations, topothar with other legal complisnce e
(as examples, customs and currency control matters) are subject to review and investigation by a number of
authorities, which are enabled by law to impose severe fines, penalties and interest charges. These facts create
tax risks in Kazakhstan substantially mere significant than typically found in countries with more developed
tax systems,
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates, continued
Estimation ancertainty, continued
Taxation, continued

Management believes that as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 the Group is in compliance with the tax laws of
the Republic of Kazakhstan and Russian Federation regulating its operations. However, the rigk remains that
relevant authorities could take differing positions with regard to interpretive fax issues.

Business combination
Acquisition of the Bank and merger of subsidiaries

On 6 February 2019 the Company purchased a controlling interest in First Heartland Jusan Bank JSC
(formerly Tsesnabank JSC), (the “Bank”) from Financial Holding “Tsesna™ JSC and became the holder of
99.8% of the voting shares of the Bank,

On 27 August 2019 the Bank acquired 100% of shares of First Heartland Bank JSC, an existing subsidiary of
the Company, by means of a share exchange with the Company at a ratio of 2.235149 shares of the Bank for
1 share of First Heartland Bank JSC, On 2 September 2019, a legal merger of the Bank and First Heartland
Bank JSC was completed.

Taking control of the Bank and its subsidiaries will enable the Group to optimise operating processes. The
acquisition is expected to provide the Group with an increased share of the market. The Group also expecis
to reduce costs through economies of scale.

The following table summarises the recognised amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
acquisition date,

At 6 February
Fair value of identifiable net assets of the Bank and its subsidiaries 2019
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 672,696
Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions 12,272
Securities measured at fair value through profit or loss 5,748
Investment securities 91,448
Loans to custeiners 421,202
Property and equipment and intangible assets 40,338
Investment property 2,532
Insurance premiums and reinsurance assets 2,143
Non—current assets held for sale 3,538
Cutrent tax asset 844
Deferred tax asset 2,274
Other assets 13,391
Total assets 1,275,426
Liabilities
Amounts due to banks and other financig] institations 34,482
Amounts payable under repurchase agreements 98,432
Amounts due to customers 571,114
Dabt securities issned 143,625
Subordinated debt §7.301
Insurance contract provistons 4,779
Deferred tax liability 63,350
Lease liability 3.954
Other liabilities 24,699
Total liabilities 1,031,736
Total iden{ifiable net assets 247,690

The fair value of identifiable net assets of the acquired group at 6 February 2019 is equal (o
KZT 243,690 million.
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Business combination, continued
Acquisition of the Bank and merger of subsidiaries, continued

Due to the distressed business situation of the Bank at the time of the acquisition, and the conditions of a
forced sale that stipulated measures on the part of the National Bank of the RK and Government of the RK
related to the atiraction of a new investor for the Bank to allow for its subsequent additional capitalisation
and recovery, it was necessary for the Group to complete the acquisition of the Bank in a short timeframe,

The consideration offered for the Bank was determined based on & conservaive estimate of the fair value of
the Bank’s assets and liabilities at the date of the sale. In particular, significant judgement was required to
estimate expected future cash flows from the Bank’s impaired corporate loan portfolio, due to these cash
flows being dependent on the realisation of diverse objects of underlying collateral, over an uncertain future
time period. As a result of this significant uncertainty regarding the expected future cash flows at the date of
agreeing the sales price for the Bank, the consideration agreed between the buyer and seller was de minimis.

A more detailed estimate of the fair value of net identifiable asscts of the Bank and its subsidiaries as at
6 February 2019 was completed by management of the Group at the end of 2019, and amounted to
KZT 243,650 million. The Group therefore recognized a gain on business combination amounted to KZT
243,690 million in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Management believes that this income arosc
mainly due to the distressed business situation of the acquiree at the time of the transaction, and the resulting
forced sale conditions.

The valuation techniques used for measuring the fair value of material assets acquired were as follows.

Assets acquired Valuation technique

Investment securities Market comparison technique and discounted cash flow tecimigue: The valuation model
considers quoted market prices for similar items when available, and the present valne of
expected future cash flows discounted using a risk-adjusted market rate.

Loans to customers Discounted cash flow fechnigue: The valuation model considers the present value of
expected future cash flows from the foreclosure of collateral, discounted using a risk-
adjusted discount rate.

Property, plant and Market comparison technique and cost technigue: The valuation model considers quoted

equipment market prices for similar items when available, and depreciated replacernent cost when

appropriate. Depreciated replacement cost reflects adjustments for physical deterioration as
well as functional and economic obsolescence.

The valnation techniques used for measuring the fair value of material Yiabilities assumed were as follows.

Liabilities assumed Valuation fechnique

Debt securities issued  Discounted cash flow technigue: The valuation model considers the present value
and subordinated debt  of expected future cash flows discounted using a risk-adjusted market rate.

The methods and assumptions used to determine the fair value of the Bank and its subsidiaries’ financial
instruments at the acquisition date were substantially consistent with the fair value estimation techiniques
described in Note 43, and used by the Group to determine fair values at the reporting date of 31 December
2019

In addition to the above assumptions to determine the fair value of recognised assets, management also
considered the existence of any previously unrecognised intangible assets, including the fair value of the
existing brand name of the acquiree, and existing customer relationships, Management concluded that the
value of such assets was not significant, and as a resull (hey have not been recognised in the financial
slalements.

Given the significant amonnt of negative goodwill arising on acquisition, management also gave parlicular
consideration to assessing the completeness of liabilities acquired, including the fair value of any contingent
liabilitics. Following a review of the Bank’s contingent obligations, management considered that the fair
value of any such obgligations was not material, due to the low likelihood outstaning claims Leing successful,

Tle respective amounts of gross contractual amounts and expected uncollectable amounts related to them at
the acquisition date are as following:

+ amounts due frown banks and other financiel institutions KAT 13,258 wullion and KZT 986 millious,
¢ investment securities — KZT 93,331 million and KZT 1,883 million;

¢ loans to customers — KZT 1,081,938 miilion and KZT 660,468 million;

*  other financial assets —~ KZT 17,987 million and KZT 4,596 million.
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Business combination, continued
Acquisition of the Bank and merger of subsidiaries, continued

From the date of acquisition to 31 December 2019 the Group and its subsidiaries contributed net interest
income of KZT 62,152 million and profit of KZT 47,571 million.

If acquisition of business had occurred on 1 January 2019, management estimates that consolidated net
interest income would have been KZT 69,619 million, and consolidated profit for the year would have been
KZT 278,840 million. In determining these amounts, management has assumed that the fair value adjustmenis
that arose on the date of acquisition would have been the same if the acquisition had occurred on
1 January 2019,

Financial yisk review

For information on the Group's financial risk management framework, see Note 37. The corresponding
description of accounting policies iz presented in Note 3.

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition , the Group considers reascnable and supporteble information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience and expert credit assessment and including forward--looking
information.

The purpose of the assessment is to increase credit risk in respect of positions exposed to credit risk by
comparing:

*  the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the reporting date;

*  the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initial recognition of
the exposure (adjusted where relevant for changes in prepayment expectations).

The Group uses three criteria for determining wheilter there lias been a stgmificant increase in credit risk:

*  Quantitative test based on movement in PD (depending on the related group of risk of the financial
instrument the movement of 100—-200% increase in PD results in significant increase in credit risk);

*  qualitative indicators; and

*  backstop of 30 days past due.

Credit risk grades

The Group allocates each exposure 1o a credit risk grade based on a variety of date that is determined to be
predictive of the risk of default and applying experienced credit Judgement. Credit risk grades are defined
using qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of the risk of default, These factors may vary
depending on the nature of the exposure and the type of borrower.

Credit risk grades are defined and calibrated such that the risk of defauit occurring increases exponentially as
the credit risk deteriorates so, for example, the difference in risk of default between cradit risk grades 1 and
2 is smaller than the difference between credit risk grades 2 and 3.

Each exposure is allocated to a credit risk grade at initial recognition baged on available information about
the borrower. Exposures are subject to ongoing monitoLiug, which may result in an exposure being moved to
a different credit risk grade. The monitoring typically involves use of the following data.

Corporate exposure All exposures (corporate and retail exposures)

» Information oblained during periodic review of borrowers’ » Payment record - this ineluder overdue statua
files —e.g. audhted financial statements, management accounts, as well as a range of variable gbout payment
budgets and projections. Examples of areas of particular focus ratios.
are: gross profit margios, finencial leverage ratios, debt service , Utilisation of the granted limit.
coverage, compliance with covenants, quality of management,
senjor management changes.

» Data from credit reference agencies, press articles, changes in
external credit ratings.

* Quoted bond and credit default swap (“CDS™) prices for the
issuer where available.

+ Actual and expected significant changes in the political,
regulatory and technological environment of the borrower or
in its business activities.

» Requests for and granting of forbearance.

s Existing aud forecast changes in business,
financial and economic conditions,
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Financial risk review, continued
Generating the ievm structure of PD

Credit risk grades and the client’s share are a primary input into the determination of the term structure of PD
for exposures. The Group collects performance and default information about its credit risk exposures
analysed by jurisdiction or region, by type of product and borrower as well as by credit risk grading,

The Group employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and generate estimates of the remaining
lifetime PD of exposures and how these are expected to change as a result of the passage of time.

This analysis includes the identification and calibration of relationships between changes in default rates and
changes in key macro—economic factors as well as in—depth analysis of the impact of certaitt other factors
(e.g. forbearance experience) on the risk of default. For the majority of exposures the key driver would be
GDP forecast growth,

The Group uses expert judgment in assessment of forward-looking information. This assessment is based
also on external information (see discussion below on incorporation of forward-looking information). The
Group then uses these forecasts to adjust its estimates of PDs.

Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly

The Group assesses whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition at each reporting
period. The criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly vary depending on different
types of lending, in particular between corporate and retail, as well as by type of product and include both
quantitative changes in PDs and qualitative factors, including a backstop based on delinquency.

Credit risk of a particular exposure is deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition if, based
on the Group’s quantitative modelling, it is determined that there are the objective factors resulting in
deterioration of financial and economic position of the counteragent. When determining whether credit risk
has increased significantly, remaining lifetime ECLs are adjusted for changes in maturity,

The credit risk may also be deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition based on
qualitative factors linked to the Group’s credit risk management processes that may not otherwise be fully
reflected in its quantitative analysis on a timely basis, This will be the case for exposures that meet certain
heightened risk criteria, such as placement on a watch list. Such qualitative factors are based on its expert
judgement and relevant historica] experience.

As a backstop, the Group considers that a significant increase in credit risk oconrs no later than when an asset
is more than 30 days past due, with the exception of amounts due from banks and investment securities, for
which significant increase in credit risk oceurs, if past due by more than 7 days. Days past due are determined
by counting the number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect of which full payment has not
been received. Due dates are determined without considering any grace period that might be available to the
borrower.

If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk relative to initial recognition,
then the Joss allowance on an instrument returns to being measured as 12—month ECL. Some qualitative
indicators of an increase in credit risk may be indicative of an increased risk of default that persists after the
indicator itself has ceased to exist. In these cases the Group determines a probation period during which the
financial asset is required to demonstrate good behaviour to provide evidence that its credit risk has daclined
sufficiently, When contractual terms of a loan have been modified, evidence that the criteria for recoguising
lifetime ECL are no longer met includes history of up-to—date payment performance against the modified
confractual terms.

The Group monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify significant increases in credit risk by
regular reviews to confirm that:

¢ the criteria are capable of identifying significant increases in credit risk before an exposure is in default;
»  the criteria do not align with the point in time when an asset becomes 30 days past due;

*  the average time between the identification of @ significant increase in credit risk and default appears
reasonable;

*  exposures are not generally transferred directly from 12-month ECL measurement (Stage 1) to credit—
impaired (Stage 3); and

+  there is no unwarranted volatility in loss allowance from transfers between 12—month ECL (Stage 1)
and lifetime ECL measurements (Stage 2).
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Financial risk review, continued
Definition of default
The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

*  the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);

*  the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the Bank, with the
exception of amounts due from banks and investment securities, which are considered 1o be in default
if past due more than 7 days. Overdrafts are considered as being past due once the customer has breached
an advised limit or been advised of a limit smaller than the current amount outstanding; or

*  itis becoming probable that the borrower will restructure the asset as a result of bankruptey due to the
borrower’s inability to pay its credit obligations.

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Group considers indicators that are;
*  qualitative — e.g. breaches of covenant;

*  quantitative — e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same issuer to the
Group; and

*  based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may vary over
time to reflect changes in circumstances.

Incorporating of forward-looking information

The Group incorporates forward—looking information into both its assessment of whether the credit risk of
an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its measurement of ECL. The Group
uses expert judgment in assessment of forward-looking information. This assessment is based on the
information from external sources.

The Group has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each partfolio of
financial instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships between macro—
economic variable and credit risk and credit losses, This key driver is inflation and GDP forecasts.

Predicted relationships between the key indicator and default and loss rates on various portfolios of financial
assets have been developed based on analysing historical data for the last 5 years.

Modified financial assets

The contractual terms of a loan agreement may be modified for a number of reasons, including changing
market conditions, customer retention and other factors not related to a current or potential eredit deterioration
of the borrower. An existing loan whose terms have been modified may be derecognised and the renegotiated
loan recognised as a new instrument at fair value in accordance with the accouniing policy set out in Noie 3.

When the terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in derecognition, the
determination of whether the asset’s credit risk has increased significantly reflects comparison of:

*  its remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms; with

¢ the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the original contractual
ferms.

When modification results in derecognition, a new loan is recognised and allocatod to Stage 1 (assuming it is
not credit—impaired al that time).

The Group renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as “forbearance activities”) to
maximise collection opportunities and minimise the risk of default. Under the Group’s forbearance policy,
loan forbearance is granted on a selective basis if the debtor is currently in default on its debt or if there is a
high risk of default, there is evidence that the debtor mads all reasonable efforts to pay under the original
contractual terme and the debtor is expected to be able to mest the revised terms.

The 1evised lenns usually luclude extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest payments and
amending the terms of loan covenants. Both retail and corporate loans are subject to the forbearance policy.
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Financial risk review, continued
Modified financial assets, continued

For financial assets modified as part of the Group’s forbearance policy, the estimate of PD reflects whether
the modification has improved or restored the Group’s ability to collect interest and principzal and the Group®s
previous experience of similar forbearance action. As part of this process, the Group evaluates the borrower’s
payment performance against the modified contractual terms and considers various behavioural indicators.

Forbearance is a qualitative indicator of a significant increase in credit risk and an expectation of forbearance
may constifute evidence that an exposure is credit-impaired. A customer needs to demonstrate consistently
good payment behaviour over a period of time before the exposure is no longer considered to be credit—
impaired/ in default or the PD is considered to have decreased such that the loss allowance reverts to being
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.,

Measurement of ECL

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:
¢ probability of default (PD);

»  loss given default (LGD);

+  exposure at default (EAD).

ECL for exposures in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD by LGD and EAD. Lifetime
ECL is calculated by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and EAD. ECL for exposures in Stage 2 and Stage
3 is caleulated by multiplying lifetime PD by LGD and EAD. For financial assets, which are individually
credit-impaired, the amount of allowances is measured for the remaining lending period as a difference
between the gross carrying amount of assets and present value of future cash flows.

Generally, these parameters are derived from internally developed statistical models of the Group and other
historical data, They are adjusted to reflect forward-looking information as described above.

PD estimates are estimates at a certain date, which are calculated based on statistical models, and assessed
using rating tools tailored o the various categories of counterparties and exposures. These statistical models
are based on internally compiled data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors. Where possible,
the Group uses market inputs for assessment of PD of large counteragents — legal entities. PDs are estimated
considering the contractual maturities of exposures and estimated prepayment rates.

The Group estimates LGD parameters based on the history of recovery rates of operating activities and sale
of collateral, which are based on statistical data and judgements on defaulted borrowers. The LGD models
consider the structure, collateral and recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to the financial asset. For
leans secured by retail property, loan—to—value (“LTV”) ratios are a key parameter in determining LGD,
LGDs are calculated on a discounted cash flow basis using the effective interest rate as the discounting factor,

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default, The Group derives the EAD from the current
exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the current amount allowed under the contract and
arising from amortisation. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying amount at the time of default,
For lending commitments, the EAD is potential fature amounts that may be drawn under the contract, which
are estimated based on historical observations and forward-looking forecasts. For financial guarantees, the
EAD represents the guarantee exposure when the financial guarantee becomes payable.

Where modelling of a parameter is carried out on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped on
the basis of shared risk characteristics that include:

*  Instrument type;

»  credil risk gradings;

*  collateral type;

¢ LTV ratio for retail mortgages;
*  date of initial recognition;

*  remaining term to maturity:

*  industry;

*  geographic location of the borrower.
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Financial risk review, continued
Measurement of ECL, continued

The groupings must be subject to regular review to ensure that expostures within a particular group remain
appropriately homogeneous,

For portiolios in respect of which the Group has limited historical data, external benchmark information is
used to supplement the internslly available data. The portfolios for which external benchmark information
represents a significant input into measurement of ECL are as follows,

Carrying amount External benchmarks used
at
31 December 2019 PD LGD
100%;
Moody’s defauit 0% — if the Government
Cash and cash equivalents 260,241 study acts as a counterparty
100%,;
Amounts due from banks and other Moody’s default 0% ~ if the Government
financial institutions 3,548 study acts as a counterparty
Moody’s default ~ Moody’s recovery rates
Investment securities 609,473 study study
Moody’s default
Promissory notes from the MFRK 70,241 study 0%
Carrying amount External benchmarks used
at
31 December 2018 PD LGD
70%,;
Moody’s default 0% — if the Government
Cash and cash equivalents 54,001 study acts as a counterparty
70%,;
Moody’s defauit 0% — if the Government
Investment securities 104,669 study acts as a counterparty

Credit quality analysis

The following table sets out information about the credit quality of financial assets measured at amortised
cost, FVOCI debt instnunents as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, respectively. Unless specially
indicated, for financial assets, the amounts in the table represent gross carrying amounts. For loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the amounts in the table represent the amounts committed or
guaranteed, respectively,

Explanation of the terms: Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3, and POCT are included in Note 3.

31 December 2019
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Fotal

Cush and cash equivailents
- rated from AA-to AA+ 15,528 - - 15,528
- rated from A- to A+ 33,261 - - 33,261
- rated from BBB- to BEB-+ 208,807 - - 208,807
- rated from BB- to BB+ 1,957 - - 1,957
- rated [rom B- to B+ 321 169 - 490
- not rated 127 76 - 203

260,001 245 - 260,246
Expected credit lesses - {5) - {5)
Total 260,001 240 _ 260241
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Financial risk review, continued
Credit quality analysis, continued

31 December 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents
- rated from BBB- to BRB+ 44,784 - - 44,784
- rated from BB- to BB+ 5,832 - - 5,832
- rated from B- to B+ 3,284 - - 3,284
- not rated 113 - - 113
54,013 - - 54,013

Expected credit losses {12) — — (12)
Total 54,001 - — 54,001

31 December 2019

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Amounts due from banks and other financial
institutions
- rated from A- to A+ 45 - - 46
- rated from BBB- to BRB+ 970 - - 970
- rated from BB- to BB+ 1,015 - - 1,015
- rated from B- to B+ 154 3 - 157
- rated from CCC- to CCC+ 45 - - 45
- not rated 1,317 — —= 1,317
3,547 3 - 3,550

Expected credit losses (2) — — (2)
Total 3,545 3 - 3,548
Invesiment securities measured at FVOCI
- rated from BBB- to BEB+ 359,664 - - 359,664
- rated from BB- to BB+ 6,921 - - 6,921
- rated from B- to B+ 128 615 - 743
Total 366,713 615 - 367,328
Investment securities measured at
amortised cost
- rated from BBB- to BBB+ 240,423 203 - 240,626
—not rated 1,518 - - 1,519
Total 241,942 203 = 242,145
Acquired right of claim en promissory note to
the MFERK
- rated from BBB- to BBB+ 70,241 - — 70,241
Total 706,241 - — 70,241

31 December 2018

Btage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Investment securities measured at faiv value
through other comprehensive income
- rated from A- to A+ 839 = = 839
Total 339 - = 839
Investment securities measured at amortised
cost
—rated from BBB- to BBB+ 102,115 - - 102,115
—rated from BB- to BB+ 163 - - 193
~ not rated 1,522 - - 1,522
Total 103,830 — — 103,830
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Financial risk review, continued
Credit quality analysis, continued

Loans to corporate customers at
amortised cost

—rated A—to A+

— rated from BBB- to BBB+
—rated BB- to BB+

—rated B- to B+

— rated from CCC- to CCC+
—not rated

— defaulted

Expected credit losses
Loans to corporate customers

Loans to corporase customers at
amortised cost

Not overdue

Overdue less than 30 days
Overdue 30-89 days

Overdue 90-179 days

Overdue 180-360 days

Overdue more than 360 days

Expected credit losses
Total

Loans to retail customers at amortised cost

Not overdue

Overdue less than 30 days
Overdue 30-89 days
Overdue 90-179 days
Overdue 180-360 days
Overdue more than 360 days

Expected credit losses
Total

Loans to retail customers at faiv value
through other comprehensive income

Not overdue

Overdue Iess than 30 days
Overdue 30-89 days
Overdue 90-179 days
Overdue 180-360 days
Overdue more than 360 days

Expected credit losses (for information)
Total

31 December 2019
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
548 - - - 548
2,724 - - - 2,724
4,015 - - - 4,015
24,327 - 35 - 24,362
5,884 817 - 4. 874 11,575
24,911 47 126 6,620 31,704
— = 10,328 613,161 623,489
62,409 8604 10,489 624,655 698,417
(405) (28)  (10,315) (474,334) (485,083)
62,004 835 174 150,321 213,334
31 December 2019
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
61,568 825 960 262418 325,771
803 1 - 87,546 88,350
38 38 1,434 1,121 2,631
- - 1,001 8,392 9,893
- - 3,622 134,317 137,939
— - 3472 130,361 133,833
62,409 864 10,489 624,655 698,417
(405) 29)  (10,315) (474334) (485,083)
62,004 835 174 130,321 213,334
41,691 23 433 28 42,175
738 400 112 5 1,253
40 470 782 35 1,327
13 - 1,358 - 1,371
- - 1,962 - 1,962
— 2 9,735 18,266 28,003
42,480 895 14,382 18,334 76,091
{441) (173)  (10,939) (13,640) (25,193)
42,039 722 3,443 4,694 50,898
112,143 — - - 112,143
704 3.689 - - 4483
- 130 1,603 - 1,733
- - 847 - 967
- - 1,025 - 1,025
- - 866 — 856
112,937 3,819 4,461 - 121,217
(3,320) (1,237)  (22,983) - (27.540)
112,937 3,819 4,461 - 121,217
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Financial risk review, continued

Credit quality analysis, continzed

31 December 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Loans to reteil customers at amortised cost
Not overdue 39 - — 39
Total 39 — - 39
31 December 2019

Stagel  Stage2  Stage3 POCI Total

Other financial assets measured at

amortised cost
Not overdue 5,565 - 5 - 5,570
Overdue less than 30 days 118 - 1 - 119
Overdue 30-89 days 494 - 1 - 495
Overdue 90-179 days 9 - 15 - 24
Overdue 180-360 days 364 74 7 - 448
Overdue more than 360 days 34 = 3,507 — 3,541

6,587 74 3,536 - 10,197
Expected credit losses {223 (74) {1,196) - (1,493)
Total 6,364 - 2,340 - 8,704

31 December 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Other financial assets measured at
amorvtised cost
Not overdue 130 - - 130
Total 130 - 130

Insurance risk management

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk. This section summarises these risks and methods,
which the Group uses to manage them.

Risk management objectives and policies for mitigating insurance risi

The Group’s management of insurance is a critical aspect of the business. For insurance contracts, the
objective is {o select assets with duration and a maturity value which match the expected cash flows from the
claims on those portfolios.

The primary insurance and reinsurance activity carried ont by the Group assumes the risk of loss from persons
or organisations that are directly subject to the risk. Such risks may relate to property, liability, accident,
cargo, health, financial or other perils that may arise from an insurable event. As such the Group is exposed
to the uncertainty surrounding the timing and severity of claims under the contract.

The Group manages its insurance risk through underwriting limits, approval procedures for transactions that
involve new products or that exceed set limits, pricing guidelines, centralised management of reinsurance and
moenitoring of emerging issues.

The theory of probability is applied to the pricing and provisioning for insurance contracts. The principal risk
is that the frequency and severity of claims is greater than expected. Insurance evenls are, by their natre,
random, and the actual number and size of events during any one year may vary from those estimated using
established slalistical techniques.

Underwriting sirategy

The Group’s underwriting strategy seeks diversity to ensure a balanced portfolio and is based on a large
potllolo of suntian 1isks over a number of years and, as such, it is believed that this reduces the variability of
the outcome.
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Insurance risk management, continued
Risk management objectives and policies for mitigating insurance risk, continued
Underwriting strategy, continued

The underwriting strategy is set out in the business plan that sets out the classes of business to be written, the
territories in which business is to be written and the industry sectors to which the Group is prepared to
underwrite. The strategy is cascaded down to individua! underwriters through detailed underwriting
authorities that set out the limits that any one underwriter can write by line size, class of business, territory
and industry in order to enforce appropriate risk selection within the portfolio.

Caleulation of the tariffs and prices on insurance product reflects current market conditions and covers the
most probable assumptions necessary for the adjustment of future results, aiming to significantly mitigate
financial risks.

Adherence to the underwriting authorities is being monitored by management on an cn—going basis. Those
transactions requiring special anthorisation are subject to the special attention of the Board of Directors of
Jusan Garant Insurance Company JSC.

Reinsurance strategy

The Group reinsures a portion of the risks it underwrites in order to control its exposures to losses and protect
capital resources. The Group buys facultative and Excess—of-Loss (*XL"} based reinsurance to reduce the
net exposure and not to exceed the actual margin of solvency.

Ceded reinsurance contains credit risk, and such reinsurance recoveries are reported after deductions for
known insolvencies and uncollectible items. The Group monitors the financial condition of reinsurers on an
ongoing basis and reviews its reinsurance arrangements periodically.

The Group does not utilise any stop—loss reinsurance.
Terms and conditions of insavance contracts and nature of risks covered

The terms and conditions of insurance contracts that have a material effect on the amount, timing and
uncertainty of future cash flows arising from insurance contracts are set out below, In addition, the following
gives an assessment of the Group’s main products and the ways in which it manages the associated risks.

General insurance contract — Civil liability of a carrier to passengers
Froduct features

The purpose of mandatory insurance of civil liability of a carrier to passengers is the carrier’s property interest
related to its obligation established by the civil legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan to compensate
damage caused to life, health and/or property of the passengers during their transportation. This product
generates income from the insurance and reinsurance preminms less amounts paid to cover claims and
expenses incurred by the Group. The amount payable to a passenger in case of his/her suffering a property
damage and/or damage to health, life is fixed in accordance with the legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan,
General civil liability is generally considered a ‘long tail’ line, as it takes a relatively long period of time to
finalise and settle claims for a given accident year.

Risk Management

The key risks associated with this product are underwriting risk, such a8, uncertainty in calculation of the

insurance payment and others. The estimated size of the reported loss is calculated based on the following

information:

*  In case of property damage the maximum amount is determined equal to the value of the baggage lost
and/or things held by /or put on) a passenger.

*  In case of damage caused to health but without disability assignment a fixed amount is set as a
compensation.

*  Ifa dieability is assigned a fixed amount is se{ [t 1eiimbursement, depending on the disability degree.
If a passenger health is aggravated, and/or in case of histher death, the reimbursable amount is subject
to recalculation,

. In case of death a fixed reimbursable amount is determined.

Insurance risk is managed primarily through pricing, product design, underwriting and payments’
management. The Group therefore monitors and reacts to changes in the general economic and commercial
environment in which it operates.
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Insurance risk management, continued
General insurance contracts — Employer’s civil liability
FProduct features

The purpose of the employer’s civil liability obligatory insurance is to insure an employee in the event of
death or injury whilst at work. Income from this product is generated from the receipt of insurance premiwms
less amounts paid to cover claims and expenses incurred by the Group. The amount payable to an employee
in the event of death or injury, is set in accordance with the laws of the Republic of Kazakhstan, As a result
of the long period that it typically takes to finalise and settle claims, employer’s civil Hability is regarded as
“long tail” business,

Risk Management

The key risks associated with this product are underwriting risk, such as, uncertainty in calculation of the
insurance payment and others. The estimated size of the reported loss is caleulated based o the following
information:

*  incase of persistent disablement of the employee:
= amount of the lost future wages (income) to be reimbursed;

- repayment period — the period of establishing physical disability by the medical expert committee
(it may be several years or lifetime disability benefit);

- degree of employer’s culpability.
+  in case of death:
- funeral expenses;

- number of persons having the right to be reimbursed for harm as required by the laws of the Republic
of Kazakhstan;

- age of persons having the right to be reimbursed for harm as required by the laws of the Republic of
Kazakhstan:

- amount of the lost future wages (incoms) to be reimbursed;
= period of insurance payments.

Insurance risk is managed primarily through pricing, product design, underwriting and payments’
management. The Group therefore monitors and reacts to changes in the general economic and commercial
envircnment in which it operates.

Insurance contracts — Property
Product features

Property insurance indemnifies, subject to any limits or excesses, the policyholder against loss or damage to
its own material property and business interruption arising from this damage.

The event giving rise to a claim for damage to buildings or contents usually ccours suddenly (such as a fire
or burglary) and the cause is readily determinable. The claim will thus be notified promptly and can be settled
without delay. Property business is therefore classified as ‘short—tail’, contrasted with ‘long—tail’ classes
where the ultimate claim cost takes longer to determine.

Risk Management
The key risks associated with this product are underwriting risk, competitive risk, and claims experience rigk,

Underwriting risk is the risk that the Group does not charge premiums appropriate for the different properties
it insures. Fol privaie propetly insurance, it is expected that there will be large numbers of properties with
similar risk profiles. However, for commercial business this may not be the case. Many commercial property
proposals comprise a unique combination of location, type of business, and safety measures in place.
Calculating a premium commensurate with the risk for these policies will be subjective, and hence tisky.

Property classes are exposed to the risk that the insured will make false or invalid claims, or exaggerate the
amount claimed following a loss. This largely explains why economic conditions correlate with the
profitability of a property porifolio.
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Insarance risk management, continued
General insurance contracts — Employer’s civil liability, continuned
Risk Management, continued

Insurance risk is managed primarily through pricing, independent assessment of property under international
standards, product design, risk selection and reinsurance. The Group thercfore monitors and reacts to changes
in the general economic and commercial environment in which it operates.

Within the insurance process, concentrations of risk may arise where a patticular event or series of events
could impact heavily upon the Group’s liabilities, Such concentrations may arise from a single insurance
contract or through a small number of related contracts, and relate to circumstances where significant
liabilities could arise.

Insurance contracts — Vehicles owner’s civil liability and general civil fiabitizy
Product features

The Group undertakes general civil liability insurance on compulsory and voluntary types of insurance in the
Republic of Kazakhstan, and vehicles owner’s civil liability on compulsory types of insurance in the Republic
of Kazakhstan. Under these contracts policyholders are reimbursed for ary monetary compensation awards
paid for the injury caused to body, life, heaith and for property of the third parties. General civil liability is
generally considered a long tail line, as it takes a relatively long period of time to finalisc and settle claims
for a given accident year.

Risk Management

"The key risks associated with this product are underwriting risk, competitive risk, and claims experience risk.
Calculating a premium commensurate with the risk for these policies will be subjective, and hence risky.
Insurance risk is managed primarily throngh sensible pricing, product design, risk selection, appropriate
investment strategy, rating and reinsurance, The Group therefore monitors and reacts to changes in the general
economic and commercial environment in which it operates.

Insurance contracts — Cargo
Product features

The Group writes cargo insurance. Cargo insurance indemnifies, subject to any limits or excesses, the
policyholder against loss or damage of cargo during transportation to the buyers. The retum to shareholders
under this product arises from the total premiums charged to policyholders less the amounts paid to cover
claims and the expenses incurred by the Group, The event giving rise to a claim could be characterised as
“low effect — high frequency™ and the cause is readily determinable. The claim will thus be notified promptly
and can be seftled without delay. Cargo business is therefore classified as ‘short-tail’.

Risk Management

The key risks associated with this product are underwriting risk, competitive risk, and claims experience risk.
The Group will also be exposed to the risk of dishonest actions by policyholders.

Underwriting risk is the risk that the Group does not charge premiums appropriate for the different routes it
insures. The risk on any policy will vary according to many factors such as route and destination, safety
measures of the carrier, nature of cargo etc. Many commercial cargo proposals will comprise a unigue
combination of route and destination, type of cargo, and safsty measures accepted by carriers. Caleulating a
premium commensurate with the 1isk for these policies will be subjective.

Cargo classes arc cxposed to the risk thet (he insured will make false or invalid claims, or exaggerate the
amount claimed following a loss. This largely explains why economic conditions correlate with the
profitability of a cargo portfolio. Insurance risk is managed primarily through sensible pricing, product desiga,
rigk selection ol 1ciusurance, The Group therefore monitors and reacts to changes in the genersl economic
and commercial environment in which it operates. Within the insurance process, it is unlikely that
concentrations of nsk may arise where a particular event or series of events could impact heavily upon the
Group’s liabilities. Cargo supplies are generally made by limited batches and various supplies are not
conmected.
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Insurance risk management, continued

General insurance contracts — Employer’s civil liability, continued
Insurance contracts — Casualty insurance

FProduct features

The purpose of the casualty insurance is to insure an employee in the event of death or significant injury
caused to body, life or health, which leaded to full or partial disability of an insurant, or any other injury.
Income from this product is generated from the receipt of insurance premiums less amounts paid to cover
claims and expenses incurred by the Group. The amount payable to an employee in the event of death or
injury is outlined in the contract and depends on the severity of injuries and their consequences. As a result
of the long period that it typically takes to finalise and seitle claims for a given accident year, casualty is
regarded as “long tail” business.

Risk Management

The key risks associated with this product are underwriting risk, such as, uncertainty in calculation of the
insurance payment and others.

The estimated size of the reported loss is calculated based on the following information;
*  incase of persistent disablement of the employee:

= repayment period — the period of establishing physical disability by the medical expert committee
(it may be several years or lifetime disability benefit);

- degree of the insurant’s injury (disability).

*  incase of death:

- the payment is made in the amount of 100% of the insurance amount.
Conceniration of insurance visk

A key aspect of the insurance risk faced by the Group is the extent of concentration of insurance risk which
may exist where a particular event or series of events could impact significantly upon the Group’s liabilities.
Such concentrations may arise from a single insurance contract or through a small number of related contracts,
and relate to circumstances where significant liabilities could arise. An important aspect of the concentration
of insurance risk is that it may arise from the accnmulation of risks within & number of individual classes or
contracts tranche.

Concentrations of risk can arise in both high-severity, low frequency events, such as natural disasters and in
sitvations where underwriting is biased towards a particular group, such as a patticular geography or
demographic trend.

The Group’s key methods in managing these risks are two—fold. Firstly, the risk is managed through
appropriate underwriting. Underwriters are not permitted to underwrite risks unless the expected profits are
commensurate with the risks assumed. Secondly, the risk is managed through the use of reinsurance. The
Group purchases reinsurance coverage for various classes of its liability and property business. The Group
assesses the costs and benefits associated with the reinsurance programme on an cngoing basis.

Total aggregate exposures

The Group sets out the total aggregate exposure that it is prepared to accept in relation to concentrations of
risk. It monitors these exposures both at the time of underwriting a risk, and on a monthly basis by reviewing
reports which show the key aggregations to which the Growp is exposed. The Group uses a mumber of
modelling toals to monitor aggregation in order to measure the offectivencss of the reinsurance programmes
and (he net exposure to which the Group is exposed.

As at 31 December 2019 the Group has 119,092 insurance agresments in force {31 December 2018: nil),
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Insurance risk management, continued

General insurance contracts — Employer’s civil liability, continued
Total aggregate exposures, continued

Exposure io various business lines

The key concentrations identified as at 31 December 2019 are:

‘Total insured Reinsurance Net retention

Type of insurance amount amount (after reinsurance)
Vehicles owner’s liability — obligatory 800,846 - 800,846
Civil liability of passenger carrier —

obligatory 151,055 - 151,055
Property — voluatary 1,491,341 1,137,886 353,455
Transport and cargo — veluntary 193,650 59,576 134,074
Civil liability — voluntary 778,643 476,354 301,789
Other obligatory 6,827 - 6,827
Other voluntary 39,407 3,149 36,258
Casualty — voluntary 13,899 11,600 2,899
Financial losses liability — voluntary 81,748 79,061 2,687
Total 1,557,416 1,767,526 1,789,890

Exposure by other couniries

The Group is not exposed fo risks in any countries other than the Republic of Kazakhstan, as the Group has
no insurance contracts covering risk outside the Republic of Kazakhstan.

Exposure to catasirophe events

The greatest likelihood of significant losses to the Group arises from catastrophic events, such as earthquake
damage, resuliing from an earthquake in Almaty. The Group does not possess catastrophe modelling
techniques and the software enabling the modelling of Probable Maximum Loss (“PML”). However, the
Group made an estimate of ifs losses that it believes will not exceed 20% of total aggregate exposure,

The key concentration identified is:

Estimated PML .
Tetal insurance (before Net retention
Catasirophe events amount reinsurance) (after reinsurance)
Almaty earthquake with magnitade
exceeding seven points under Richter scale 103,295 20,659 20,659

Claims development

The Group uses statistical methods for insurance contract provisioning. Uneertainty about the omount and
timing of claims payment for all insurance contracts is typically resolved within one year.

While the information in the table provides a historical perspective on the adequacy of unpaid claims estimates
established in previous years, users of these consolidated financial statements are cautioned against
extrapolating redundancies or deficiencies of the past on current unpaid loss balances. The Group believes
that the estimate of total claims ouistanding as of the end of 2019 is adequate. However, due to the inherent
uncertainties in the reserving process, it cannot be assured that such balances will nltimately prove to be
adequate,
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Insurance risk management, continued

Analysis of claims development (gross) — total

Accident vear
KZT million 2016 2017 2018 2019
Estimate of cumulative claims
At the end of the accident year 2,883 2,827 1,946 2,972
— one year later 2,828 2,110 1,443 -
~ two years later 2,854 2,206 - -
~three years later 2,731 = - -
Estimate of cumuiative claims 2,731 2,206 1,443 2972
Cumilative payments to date (2,628) {1,993 (1,185} (1,046)
Gross outstanding claims liabilities 103 213 258 1,926
Analysis of claims development (gross) — Vehicle owner’s civil lability
Accident vear
KZT million 2016 2017 2018 2019
Estimate of cumulative claims
At the end of the accident year 2,131 849 541, 471
— one year later 2,282 744 494 -
— two vears later 2312 751 - -
— three years later 2,149 - - -
Estimate of cumulative claims 2,149 751 494 471
Cumulative payments to date {2,135) (676) {455) {229
Gross outstanding claims liabilities 14 75 39 242
Net interest income
Net interest income comprises the following:
2019 2018
Interest income calculzted using the effective interest rate
Loans to customers measured at amortised cost 46,851 3
Investent securifies measured at amortised cost 26,344 7,678
Loans to customers measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income 17,625 -
Investment securities measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income 14,489 283
Cash and cash equivalents 12,196 716
Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions 1,081 -
Promisgory notes from the MFRK 541 -
Other assets 81 -
119,208 8,680

Other interest income
Loans to customers measured at fair value through profit or loss 9,626 —
Securities measured at fair value through profit or loss 815 &7

10,441 67
Inferest expenses
Amounts due to customers {36,438) (3,337)
Debl securiiies issued {13,969) -
Subordinated debt {(8,369) :
Amonnts pzyable under repurchase agrooments (1,726) (125)
Amounts due to banks and other financial institutions (1,353) -
Lease liabilities (487) -
Other liabilities 121} e8]

(62.463) (3,463
67,186 5,284
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Income from reduction of allowances for expected credit [osses

Income from reduction of allowances for expected credit Iosses comprises the following;

2019
Note _Stagel Stage2 Stage3 POCI Total

Loans to customers measured at

amortised cost 23 184 (159) {4,089) 16,395 12,331
Loans to customers measored at fair

value through other comprehensive

income 23 (1,837  (1,655) (8,187) - (11,679
Amounts due from banks and other

financial institutions 20 80 - - - 80
Investment securities 22 54 (83) - - (29)
Credit related commitments 30 - 1 (1% - (14)
Cash and cash equivalents 18 (M - - - (7N
Other financial assets 27 1 (14) 925 - a12
Total (1,525) (1,910) (11,366) 16,395 1,594

2018
Note _Stagel Stage2 Stage3 POCI Total

Other financial assets 27 (2) - — — (2)
Total ) — — - @

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income comprises the following:

2019 2018

Fee and commission income

Transfer operations 3,680 -
Cash withdrawal 1,574 -
Client card account maintenance fees 1,106 -
Guarantee and letter of credit issuance fees 1,016 -
Settlement 718 55
Consuiting services 861 340
Brokerage services 351 151
Foreign exchange 378 -
Fee and commission income from insurance activity 296 -
Internet banking 190 -
Fiduciary services 160 -
Safe deposit transactions services 82 -
Agent agreements with insurance companies 8 -
Cash collection 6 -
Other fee and commission income 999 44
Fee and commission income 11,623 590

The Group recognises fee and commission income in accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue Srom Contracts with
Customers based on the objective, for which the amount of fee and commission is determined, and according
to the adopted accounting policy for the appropriate financial instrument.

Fees and commissions for financial services, that arc not integral to the effective interest rate on (he
appropriate {inancial instrument, is recognised depending on the type of the service either at the point in time
or as the Group satisfies its performance obligation under the contract:

- fees and commissions for transfer operations, cash operations and foreign exchange is charged for
execution of customers’ payment orders in accordance with the tariffs depending on the type of
transaction and is recognised as income at the time when transaction is performed;

- commission for guarantee and letter of credit issuznce 15 paid by customers in advance and Is recognised
as income over the term of validity of a relevant guarantee or letter of credit.

- client account maintenance fees are recognised over time as the services are provided.
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11. Fee and commission expense

Fee and commission expense comprises the following:

2019 2018

Fee and ecommission expenses KZT000 KZTY000
Client card account maintenance fees (1,804) -
Insurance acquisition costs and insurance agents' services (1,172) -
Comrespondent accounts maintenance {527) (16)
Fee and commission expense on foreign exchange (379) -
Fee and commission expense on letters of credit issued (220) -
Brokers® services (197) 210
Fee and commission expense on agent services (194) -
Transfer operations (170) -
Fee and commission expense on guarantees issued (28) -
Agency contracts with auto dealers {28) -
Other fee and commission expense (376) {63)
Fee and commissien expense (5,093} {100}
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14. Net gains from foreign currencies

Net foreign exchange gain is as follows:

2019 2018
Gain on spot transactions 5,099 104
Revaluation of foreign currency items, net 3,725 247
Fotal 8,824 4i1
15. Personnel expenses
Personnel expenses are as follows:
2019 2018
Employee compensation {21,031) (2,780)
Social contributions and payroll related taxes (2,578) (196)
Totat (23,609) (2,976)
16. Other general and administrative expenses
Other general and administrative expenses are as follows:
2019 2018
Depreciation and amortisation {4,550) {105)
Contributions to the guarantee fund deposits and insurance payments (4,034) -
Repairs and maintenance (2,732) (68)
Taxes other than on income (1,890) (47
Professional services {1,323} {313)
Transportation expenses {1,134) {2)
Rent (1,131) (59)
Communications and information services (1,017 (173)
Security (727} 1)
Advertising and marketing (567) (1
Cash collection expenses (319) -
Business travel expenses (261) (90)
Fines and penalties {183) -
Stationery and office equipment supplies (130) -
Postal and courier services (104) -
Recruitment and training (39) -
Charity and sponsorship (28) -
Representation expenses (23) -
Insurance (22) -
Other (2,192) (94)
Other general and administrative expenses (22,411) (083)
17. Corporate income tax expense
Corporate income tax expense is as follows:
2019 2018
Current corporate income tux expense
Current year 92} (44)
Under provided in prior years (2) -
Deferred tax expense
Deferred corporate income tax (expense)/income - origination and
decrease of temporary differences (9,363) 162
Corporate income tax (expense)/ benefit (2.457) 118

In 2019, the applicable tax rate for current and deferred tax 1s 20% {2018: 20%).
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First Heartland Securities Joint Stock Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementis for 2019

(in millions of Kazakhstani tenge uniess otherwise stated)

Corporate income tax expense, continued

Reconciliation of effective tax rate for the years ended 31 December:

2019 Y 2018 Y

Profit before income tax 287,252 2,229
Income tax at the applicable income tax
rate (57,450) 200 (44a6) 20.0
Under provided in prior years 2) 0.0 - -
Non—taxable gain from business acquisition 48,738 {17.0) - -
Non—taxable income 3,501 {1.2) 915 (41.0)
Unrecognised deferred tax asset (4,6593) 1.6 (104) 4.7
Non—taxable reversal of provision 612 (0.2) - -
Nen—deductible Interest expenses (154) 0.1 (245) 11.0
Non—deductible expense £)] 0.0 (2) 0.1

(9,457) 3.3 118 (5.3)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the amounts used for taxation purposes give rise to deferred tax assefs and Habilities as at
31 December2019 and 31 December 2018. Deferred income tax assets in respect of tax losses carricd forward
are recognised in these consolidated financial statements. The future tax benefits will only be realised if profits
will be available against which the unused tax losses can be ufilised and there are no changes to the law and
regulations that adversely affect the Group’s ability to claim the deductions in foture periods.

The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation. Period of use of tax loss
carried forward expires in 10 years.

Deferred income tax assets and Habilities as at 31 December 2019 as well as their movements during the year
are as follows:

Acquired
Balance during Balance
1 January business Recognised in Recognised in 31 December
2019 combination profit or loss cquity 2019

Property, equipment and
intangible assets (333) (636) (330) 209 (1,092)
Investment property (10 = (1) - {11
Loans to customers - 1,650 2,309 (623) 3,334
Right—of-use assets - 802 84 - 886
Debt securities issned - {101,893) 2,709 = (99,184)
Subordinated debt - (12,520) 279 - (12,241
Lease liahilities - (791} (122) i5 (898)
Other liabilities 280 1,657 261 (3) 2,195
Tax loss carry — forwards - 51,564 {9,859) 54 41,759
Unrecognised deferred tax
asset (104) {909) (4,693) (135) (5,841)
Deferred tax Liability, net {169) (61,076) {9,363) (485) (71,093)
Including:
Deferred tax asset 2,274 155 - 2,429
Deferred tax liability (169) (63,3500 (9,518) {485) (73,322)

Deferred tax assets and lisbilities ns at 31 Decomber 2018 as well as their movetuents duting the yeal a1¢ as
follows:

Balance Impact of Balance
i Jannary adopting  Recognised in 31 December
2018 IFRS ¢ profit or loss 2018

Loans to customers - 2 {2) —
Property, equipment and intangible assets (337) - 2 (335}
Invostment property - 10 (10
Other liabilities 4 - 276 280
Unrecognised tax asset - — (104} (104)
Deferred tax liability, net (333) 2 162 (16%)
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First Heartland Securities Joint Stock Company
Nates to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2019

(in millions of Kazakhstani tenge unless otherwise stated)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

31 December

31 December

2018 2018

Cash on hand 41,185 1,237
Balances on current aceounts with the NERK 81,403 31,118
Balances on current accounts with the CBRF 5,863 -
Balances on current bank accounts with other banks:
— rated from AA- to AA+ 9 -
— rated from A~ to A+ 4,561 -
— rated from BBB- to BBB+ 6,899 662
- rated from BB- to BB+ 1,918 5,832

rated from B- 10 B+ 409 594
— not rated 203 24
Term deposits with the NBRK (rated BBB-) 80,072 -
Current accounts and term deposits with other banks:
— rated from AA- to AA+ 15,519 -
— rated from A- to A+ 28,700 -
- rated from BBB- to BBB+ 180 1,921
— rated {from BB- to BB+ 39 -
— rated from B- to B+ 81 2,690
-~ not rated - 8%
Reverse repurchase agreements 24,390 11,083
Precious metals 5 -
Gross cash and cash equivalents 301,436 55,250
Less loss allowance &) (12)
Cash and cash equivalents 301,431 35,238

The credit ratings are presented by reference to the credit ratings of Standard & Poor’s/Fitch rating agency or
analogues of similar international rating agencies.

None of cash and cash equivalents are past due.
Minimum reserve requirements

Asat 3! December 2019, minimum reserve requirements are caleulated in accordance with regulations issued
by the NBRK. To meet the requirements the Bank places cash in reserve assots, which should be maintained
at the level not less than average of cash on hand in the national currency and balances on current account
with the NBRX in the national currency for a 4-week period (31 December 2018: at the level not less than
average of cash on hand in the national currency and balances on current account with the NBRK in the
national currency for a 4—week period), calculated as certain minimum level of residents' and not—residents’
oustomer deposits and cuneut accounts balances as well as olher Bank’s labilitles. As at 31 December 201 9,
the minimum reserve requirement is KZT 8,785 million (31 December 2018: KZT 2,956 million), and the
reserve asset is KZT 25,246 million (31 December 2018: KZT 3,131 miilion).

Concentration of cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2019 the Group has no accounts and term deposits with other banks, whose balance
exceeds 10% of equity (31 December 2018: nil).
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First Heartland Securities Joint Stack Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2019

(in mitiions of Kasukhstuni fenge unless otherwise stated)

Derivative financial instrnment
Foreign currency contracts

The Group enters into derivative transactions, The table below shows the fair values of derivatives carried as
assets or liabilities, and its notional amounts, The notional amount, recorded gross, is the amcunt of a
derivative’s underlying asset, base rate or index and is the basis upon which changes in the value of derivatives
are measured. The notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at the year end and are
not indicative of the credit risk.

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Notional Fair value Notional Fair value
amonnt  Asset Liability amount  Asset  Liability

Foreign currency contracts

Swaps — foreign coniracts 133,593 13 {32) 8,814 27 -
Swaps — domestic contracis 8.253 - {10) 692 7 -
13 (42) 34 -

Foreign carrency contracts in the table above stand for contracts coneluded with RK non-resident entities and
domestic contracis mean contracts concluded with R resident entities.

Al 31 December 2019, the Group has foreign currency swaps, which represent an agreement hetween two
parties to exchange amounts corresponding to changes in foreign exchange rate based on notional amounts.

At 31 December 2018, the Group has no accounts payable and accounts receivable on foreign currency swap
contracts,

During 2019, net loss on foreign currency derivative transactions amounted to KZT 992 million (2018: nil).

Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions
Amonnts due from banks and other financial institutions are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

Mandatory reserves with the CBRF 946 -
Loans and deposits with other banks:

—rated from A- to A+ 46 -
—rated from BBB- to BBB+ 24 -
- rated from BB- to BB+ 1,015 -
— rated from B- to B+ 157 -
—rated from CCC- to CCC+ 45 -
—not rated 1,317 —
Gross amonn{s due from banks and other financial institutions 3,550 -
Allowance for expected credit losses {2) -
Amounts due from banks and other financial institutions 3,548 -

The credit ratings are presented by reference to the credit ratings of Standard & Poor’s rating agency or
analogues of similar international rating agencies.

As at 31 December 2019 loans and deposits with other banks (not rated) of KZT 1,317 million comprise
seourity deposits and a margin with the Kazakhstan Stock Exchauge ISC (“KASE™) (31 December 2018; nil).

Mandatory reserves with the CBRF is an interest—free deposit calculated in accordance with the requirements
of the CBRF and the free use of which is restricted.

Concentration of amounts due from banks and other financial institutions

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has fands with KASE whose balance exceeds 10% of total amounts due
from banks and other financial institutions. The gross value of this balance as at 31 December 2019 is
KZT 1,317 million (31 December 2018: nil),
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First Heartland Securities Joint Stock Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenis for 2019

{in millions of Kazakhstani tenge unless otherwise stated)

Securities measured at fair value through profit or loss

Securities measured at fair value through profit or loss comprise the following:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
Debt securities
Notes of the NBRK 2,581 544
Bends of banks rated from BB- to BB+ 459 -
US treasury 402 2,685
Total debt securities 3,442 3,229
Corporate bonds
- rated from BBB- to BBB+ 3,757 1,403
—rated from BEB- to BB+ 2985 489
— rated from B- to B+ 1,11 226
— not rated 164 -
Total corporate bonds 8,017 2,120
Equity investments
— Corporate shares 1,346 274
— Shares 16 -
12,821 5,623
Pledged under sale and repurchase agreements
Govermment bonds
—Notes of the NBRK 1,305 -
Total government bonds 1,305 -
14,126 5,623

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
comprise securities held for sale that are not overdue.

The credit ratings are presented by reference to the credit ratings of Standard & Poor’s/Fitch rating agency or
analogues of similar international rating agencies.

Investment securities

Investment securities comprise:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
Investment geourities measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income 367,390 839
Investment securities measured ot amortised cost 242,145 103,830
609,535 104,669
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First Heartland Securities Joint Stock Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2019

(in millions of Knzakhstani tenge unless otherwise stated)

Investment securities, continued
Investment securities measured at fair value through other comprehensive income comprise:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

Debt investment securities
Government bonds .
Notes of the NBRK 265,719 -
Eurcbonds of MFRK 53,851 839
Total government bonds 349,570 839
Equity investment securities
Corporate shares 62 -
Total equity instruments 62 -
Corporate bonds
-- rated from BBB- to BBB+ 4,954 -
- rated from BB- to BB+ 6,921 -
—rated from B- to B+ 743 —
Tolal corporate bonds 12,618 -
Pledged under repurchase agreements
Debt investment securities
Government bonds
Notes of the NBRK 3,140 -
Total government bonds pledged under repurchase agreements 5,140 -

367,390 B39

All balances on investment securitics measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
allocated to Stage 1 and 2 for ECL purposes (Note 6).

The table below provides an analysis of the changes in allowance for ECL for 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Provision for ECL on January 1 - -
Net charge (Note 9) {86) -
Exchange differences 40 -
Provision for ECL on December 31 {46) —

Securities measured at amortised cost comprise:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
Debt investment securities
Government bonds
Notes of the NBRK 223,346 -
Eurobonds of the MFRK 17,059 -
Treasury bills of the MFRK 13 100,859
240,423 100,859
Allowance for expected credif losses (J)
‘Total government bhonds 240,423 100,856
Corporate bonds
—rated from BBB- to BBB+ 203 1,259
—rated from BB- to BB+ - 193
—not rated 1,519 1,522
Total corporate bonds 1,722 2.974
242,145 163,830
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First Heartland Secuvities Joint Stock Company
Noies to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2019

(ta mitlions of Kazakhstani tenge unless otherwise Stated)

Investment securities, continued

The credit ratings are presented by refarence to the credit ratings of Standard & Poor’s rating agency or
analogues of similar international rating agencies.

Corporate bonds represent interest-bearing securities, issned by local companies and banks. These securities
are freely tradable on KASE.

All government bond balances are allocated to Stage 1 for ECL purposes. The table below provides an
analysis of the changes in allowance for ECL for 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Balanece at 1 January 3) -
Acquisition resulting from a business combination (Note 3) (56) )]
Net reversal 57 -
Exchange differences 2 -
Batance at 31 December — (3)

Loans to customers
Loans to customers comprise the following;
31 Pecember 31 December

2019 2018

Loans to customess measured at amortised cost 774,508 39
Allowaiice on expected credit logses (510,276) -
Total loans to customers measured at amortised cost net of
expected credit losses 264,232 39
Loans to customers measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income 121,217 -
Loans to customers measured at fair value through profit or loss 28,202 :

414,651 39
Loans to customers measured at amortised cost
Loans to customers measured at amortised cost comprise the following:

31 Deceraber 2019 31
December
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total 2018

Leans to corporate customers
Loans to large corporates 9,048 221 9,382 220,209 238,360 -
Loans to small and medivm-
size companies 53,361 643 1,107 404 446 459,557 -
Total loans to corporate
customers 62,409 864 10,489 624,655 698,417 —
Loans to retail customers
Morigage loans 22,725 242 1,869 4,286 28,122 38
Car loans 3,553 459 10,228 i1,139 27,379 -
Express loans 9,011 163 135 760 10,069 -
Consumer loans 4.943 27 1,796 2,149 8,915 -
Credit cards 248 4 354 — a06 —
Total loans to retail
customers 42,480 895 14,382 18,334 76,091 39
Loans lo customers 104,889 1,759 24.871 642,989 774,508 39

Allowance for expected credit

losses {846) (202)  (21,254) (487,974) (510,276) -
Loans to customers net of

altowance for expected

credit losses 104,043 1,557 3,617 155015 264,232 39
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Flirst Heartland Secarities Joint Stock Compuany
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2019

(in miitlions of Kazakhstani tenge unless otherwise stated)

Loans to customers, continued
Loans to customers measured at amortised cost, continued
Analysis of movements in impairment allowance

Below is an analysis of changes in gross carrying amonnt and corresponding ECL allowance for loans to
corporate customers measured at amortised cost for the year ended 31 December 2019:

2019

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Leans to corpovate customers
Gross carrying amount at
1 Janunary - — - - -
Acquisition resulting from a business
combination (Note 5) 55,385 2,775 8,727 688,000 754,887
New asscts originated or purchased 78,705 - - 4,261 82,966
Assets that have been derecognised
or repaid (except for write— offs) (68,664) (206) (414) (82,214)  (151,498)
Transfers to Stage 1 724 (724) - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (2,979) 2,979 - - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (760) (3,486) 4,246 - -
Write— offs - ~- {1,072) (2,328) (3,400
Net change in accrued interest (89 (531) (1,556) 13,373 11,187
Effect of changes in exchange rates 87 57 558 3,563 4.265
At 31 December 62,409 364 10,489 624,655 698,417

2019

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Loans to corporate customers
ECL at  January - - - - -
Acquisition resnlting from a business
combination {(Noze 5) {465) (1,029) (7.478)  (486,875)  (495,847)
New assets originated or purchased Q1D - - (4,261 (4472)
Assets that have been derecognised
or repaid (except for write— offs) 266 1 (112) 30,112 30,267
Transfers to Stage 1 (107) 107 - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 61 (61) - - -
Transfers to Stage 3 2 851 (853) - -
Nef remeasurement of ECL 75 125 (2,097) (9,371) (11,268)
Unwinding of discount - - (318) (2,843) (3,161}
Write— offs - - 1,072 2,328 3,400
Effect of changes in exchange rates (26) (23) {529) {3,424 {4,002)
At 31 December (405) (29) (10,315)  (474,334)  (485,083)

In 2019 the Group purchased a controlling interest in the Bank and its subsidiaries. This results in recognition
of new instraments from the date of acquisition. However, due to the Kmitations of the automated banking
information system, the related fimancial statement disclosures reflect the historic gross value of the purchased
loan contracts, prior to their acquisition by the Group, together with a related allowance for expected credit
losscs. The additional gross disclosute of (he historic loan amount does not sffect the carrying, amount of the
newly recognised loans in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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First Heartland Secuvities Joint Stock Company
Noiew to the Consolidated Financial Siatemants for 2019

23.

(in mitlions of Kazakhstani tenge unless otherwise stated)

Loans fo customers, continued
Loans to eustomers measnred at amortised cost, continued
Analysis of movements in impairment allowance, continued

Below is an analysis of changes in gross carrying ameunt and comresponding ECL allowance for loans to
retail customers measured at amortised cost for the year ended 31 December 2019:

2019
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Loans 10 retail customers
Gross carrying amount at
1 January 39 - - - 39
Acquisition resulting from a business
combination (Nofe 5) 42,517 1,478 12,006 18,631 74,632
New assets originated or purchased 19,660 163 170 - 19,993
Assets that have been derecognised
or repaid {except for write—offs) (8,668) {108) (1,613) {602) (10,291)
Transfer to Stage 1 643 (288) (355) - -
Transfer to Stage 2 (1,464) 1,547 (83) - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (1,678) {1,537) 3,215 - -
Net change in interest accrued {9,102) 404 (541) 359 (9,688)
Write—offs (3) - (232) (50) (285)
Unwinding of discount (1) - 1,181 - 1,180
Effect of changes in exchange rates 537 44 634 (4) 1,211
At 31 December 42 480 895 14,382 18,334 76,091
2019
_Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Loans to vetail customers
ECL at 1 January - - - - -
Acquisition resulting from a business 414) (283) (72213 (13,608)  (21,526)
New financial assets originated or (334) (71) (67) - (472)
Assets that have been derecognised 5 - (99) 52 (42)
Transfer to Stage 1 (167 87 80 - -
Transfer to Stage 2 45 'Cx] 52 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 55 416 471) - -
Net remeasurement of ECL 383 (214} (1,714) (137) (1,682)
Write—offs 2 - 233 50 285
Unwinding of discount - - (1,192) - (1,192)
Effect of changes in exchange rates (16) {11) {540) 3 (564)
At 31 December (441) (173) (10.939) (13.640) (25.193)

Movements in the loan impairment allowance by classes of loans to cusiomers for the year ended
31 December 7018 are as follows:

2018
Stape 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Loany fo reiail customers
Gross carrying amount at 1 January 64 - - a4
Write—offs (25) - = {25
At 31 December 39 -~ — 39
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23.

First Heartland Securities Joint Stock Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2019

(in millions of Kazakhstani tenge unless otherwise stated)

Loans to customers, continued
Key assumptions and judgments used in estimation of expected credit losses
Loans to corporate customers

In determining the loss allowance for expected credit losses on loans to corporate customers, management
makes the following key assumptions:

*  Adiscount of between 20% and 85% to the originally appraised value if the property pledged is sold.
*  Exclusion from collateral value of unstable collaterals.
*  Adelay of up to 60 months in obtaining proceeds from the foreclosure of collateral.

*  PD forloans referred to as Stage 1 in terms of credit quality was 0.0 1-27.45%, referred to as Stage 2 in
terms of credit quality — 17.08-46.96%, depending on the borrower’s internal rating,

*  LGD for loans referred to as Stages 1 and 2 was 0 — 54.59%.

Changes in the above estimates may impact a loss allowance for expected credit losses. For example, to the
extent that the discount to the originally appraised value of collateral on sale differs by plus/minus ten percent,
loss allowance for expecied credit losses on loans to corporate customers measured at amortisod cost us at
31 December 2019 would be KZT 14,405 miilion lower/higher. To the extent that the delay in obtaining
proceeds from the foreclosure of collaterat differs by plus/minus one year, loss allowance for expected credit
losses on loans to corporate customers measured at amortised cost as at 31 December 2019 would be
KZT 12,803 million lower and KZT 11,264 million higher, respectively,

Loans to retail customers

The Bank estimates loss allowance for expected credit losses for loans to retail customers based on its past
historical loss experience on each type of loan, The significant assumptions used by management in
determining the loss allowance for expected credit losses for loans to retail customers include:

*  migration rates are constant and can be estimated based on historic loss migration pattern for the past
5 years; a 12-month PD for groups of products referred to as Stage 1 in terms of credit quality was
2--43%;

*  lifetime PD referred to as Stage 2 in terms of credit quality was 58 — 89%, depending on the group of
products of homogeneous retail portfolio;

*  recovery rates for uncollateralised loans are estimated based on historical cash recovery rates for the
past 3 years; recovery rates for products of homogeneous portfolio referred to as Stage 1 and Stage 2
was 35.12%;

+  adiscount of between 30% and 50% to the annually appraised value if the property pledged is sold;
*  adelay of up to 36 months in obtaining proceeds from the sale of foreclosed collateral.

Changes in the above estimates may impact a loss allowance. For example, to the extent that the net present
value of the estimated cash flows differs by plus/minus three percent, loss allowance on loans to retail
customers as at 31 December 2019 would be KZT 3 039 million lower/higher.

For information about the potential impact of the outbreak of the COVID-19 virus on the carrying amount of
the Bank’s loan portfolio in 2020, see Note 44,

Loans to retail customers measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Louns fo retail customers measured at fair value through other comprehensive income include the foHowing
position:

At 31 December 2019 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 Taotal
Cur lvans 112,957 3,818 4,462 121,217

During 2019, the Group sold car loans portfolios with fixed interest rates for the amount of
KZT 15,151 million at the price of KZT 16,123 million to third parties (2018: nil}, and undertook a
commitment to copurchase iudividual loans dunng the psriod botweon four and eight months affer ther sale
at notional value if loan was overdue for more than 30 calendar days. The Group has determined that it has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards to the transferse, and accordingly the loan portfolio has been
derecognised. The Group's continuing involvement in transferred portfolios is recognised in the statement of
financial position under “other liabilities” line item.
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First Heartland Securities Joiut Sfock Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenis for 2019

{in millions of Kazakhstani tenge wnless othenvise stated)

Loans to customers, continued

Loans to retail customers measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, continned

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Car loans
Fair value at 1 January 2019 - - - -
Acquisition resulting from a business
combination (Noze 5) 75,443 3,033 3,847 82,323
New financial assets originated or purchased 73,231 - - 73,231
Assets that have been derecognised (except for
write—offs) (11,783) (61) @ (11,846)
Transfer to Stage 1 R61 {626) {235) -
Transfer to Stage 2 {4,211) 4,277 {66) -
Transfer to Stage 3 (1,824) {1,311) 3,135 -
Write-offs - - (122) (122)
Net repayments (24,777) (1,708) (2,359) (28.839)
Effect of changes in exchange rates 5,997 214 259 6,470
At 31 December 2019 112,937 3,818 4,462 121,217
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Car loans
ECL at 1 January 2019 - - - -
Acquisition resulting from a business
combination (Note 5) (1,563) 872) (12,505) {14,940}
New financial assets originated cr purchased (2,318) - - (2,318)
Assets that have been derecognised (except for
write—offs) 307 1 24 332
Transfer to Stage 1 (398) 204 194 -
Transfer to Stage 2 185 (241) 36 -
Transfer to Stage 3 146 1,392 (1,538) -
Write—offs = - 122 122
Net reameasurement of ECL 481 {1,655) {8,187) (%.3¢1)
Effect of changes in exchange rates (160} (67) {1,148) (1,375)
At 31 December 2019 (3,320) (1,238) (22,982) (27,540)

Loans to corporate customers measured at fair value through profit or loss
Loans to corporate customers measured at fair value through profit or loss include the following items:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
Loans to large corporates 3,330 -
Loans to small and medium companies 25,872 -
Total 29,202 -

The following table provides information on the credit quality of loans to corporate customers measured at
fair value through profit or loss as at 31 December 2019:

Loans to small
Loans to large and medium

corporates companies Total

Leans to corporate customers at FVEPL,

— not overdue 2,661 3,553 6,214
— overdue 30-89 days 48 208 256
- overdue 90-179 days - 660 660
— overdue more than 180 days and less than 1 vear 621 16,874 17,495
— overdue more than 1 vear - 4,577 4,577
Total 3,330 25,872 29,202
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Loans to customers, continued
Analysis of collateral and other credit enhancements
Loans to corporate customers

The following tables provides information on collateral and other credit enhancements securing loans to
corporate customers (net of loss allowance) by types of collateral.

31 December 2019
Fair value of
Fair value of  collateral - for
Carrying collateral — for collateral

amount of collateral assessed as of  Fair value of
leans to assessed as of  loan inception  collateral not
customers reporting date date determined
Stage 1
Real estate 45,204 14,803 30,311 -
Guarantees 11,728 - - 11,728
Cash and deposits 1,648 1,648 - -
Movabie property 84s 185 660 -
Equipment 753 53 700 -
Other 354 - 354 -
Transport 325 - 325 -
No collateral or other credit
enhancement 1,147 - - 1,147
Total Stage 1 loans 62,004 16,779 32,350 12,875
Stage 2
Real estate 479 - 479 -
Guarantees 13 - - 13
No collateral or other credit
enhancement 343 - —= 343
Total Stage 2 loans 83s - 479 356
Stage 3
Real estate 148 — 148 =
Equipment 26 - 26 -
Total Stage 3 loans 174 - 174 -
POCI
Real estate 123,458 117,578 5,880 -
Movable property 10,322 10,313 7 -
Equipment 4,536 4,122 414 -
Guarantees 2,791 - - 2,791
Vehicles 1,346 1,011 335 -
Securities 1,132 1,132 - -
Cash and deposits 614 614 = -
No collateral or other credit
enhancement 6,122 - — 6,122
Total POCI loans 150,321 134,772 6,636 8,913
Loans measured af fair value
through profit or loss
Real estate 29,202 29,202 - —
Total Joans measured at fair value
through profit or loss 29.202 29202 - _ —
Total loans to corporate custonters 242,536 180,753 39,639 22,144

The tables above exclude overcollateralisation.

On November 27, 2019, the Bank approved a policy to ensure the fialfillment of obligations of borrowers {in
2018 the Bank did not amend the policies related to collateral). The amount stated in “No collateral or other
credit enhancement” item comprises unsecured loans and part of oans not fully secured.
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Loans to customers, continned
Analysis of collateral and other credit enhancements
Loans to retail customers

For loans secured by muitiple types of collateral, collateral that is most relevant for assessment of allowance
for expected credit losses is disclosed, Guarantees received from individuals, such as shareholders of SME
borrowers and corporate guarantees received from local companies not rated, are not considered for the
assessment of allowance for expected credit losses’ purposes.

Mortgage loans are secured by the underlying housing real estate. The Group’s policy is to issue retail loans
with a loan—to-value ratio of maximum 80%. Car loans are secured by the underlying cars. The Group’s
policy is to issue car loans with 2 loan-to—value ratio of maximum 90%. Consumer loans are generally secured
by underlying properties and in certain cases by assets, including vehicles, cash deposits and guarantees.

The following tables provides information on collateral and other credit enhancements securing loans to retail
customers {net of loss allowance) by types of collateral.

31 December 2019
Fair value of
Fair value of collaterzl —for
Carrying  collateral —for  collateral

amount of collateral assessed as of  Fair value of
Loans to retail castomers measured loans to assessed as of loan inception collateral not
at amortised cost customers  reporting date date determined
Stage 3
Cash and deposits 10 10 - -
Real estate 1,708 - 1,708 -
Movable property 1 - 1 -
Vehicles 1,421 - 1,421 -
Guarantees 26 - 19 7
No collateral or other credit
enhancemens 277 - - 277
Total Stage 3 loans 3,443 10 3,149 284
POCI
Cash and deposits 69 69 - -
Real estate 2424 - 2,424 -
Movable property 32 - 32 -
Vehicles 2,159 - 2,159 -
No collateral or other credit
enhancement 10 - — 10
Total POCI loans 4,694 69 4,615 10
Total loans to retail customers
measured at amortised cost 506,898 388 34,500 16,010
31 December 2019
Faiv value of
Fair value of  collateral -

Carrying collateral —  for collateral

amount of for collateral assessed as of  Fair value of
Loans to retail customeys loans to assessed as of loan inception collateral not
measured at FYOCI customers  reporting date date determined
Stage3
Vehicles 4,462 -~ 4,462 -
Total Stage 3 loans 4,462 - 4,462
Total loans to retail customers
measured at FVOCI 121,217 — 121,217 —

AT



First Heartland Securities Joint Stock Comnpany
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenis for 2019

(in millions of Kazakhstani tenge unless otherwise stated)

Loans to customers, continued
Industry analysis of the loan portfolio

The following table represents loans issued to customers located within the Republic of Kazakhstan, who
operaie in the following economic sectors:

31 December 31 Pecember

2019 2018

Manufacturing 177,143 -
Services 203,716 -
Agriculture B.647 -
Trade 104,190 -
Construction 154,650 -
Transport 37,150 -
Finance and insurance 40,047 -
Education 1,542 -
Other 534 -
Total loans to corporate customers 727,619 -
Loans to retail customers

Mortgage loans 45 832 -
Car loans 12,803 -
Consumer loans 10,068 -
Express loans 7,312 -
Credit cards 76 -
Total loans to retail customers 76,091 -
Total loans to customers before allowance for expected credit

losses 803,710 -
Allowance for expected credit losses (510,276) —
Total loans to customers, net of allowance for expected credit

losses 293,434 -

The following table represents loans issued to customers located within Russian Federation, who operate in
the following economic sectors:

Loans to retail customers measured at fair value through other 31 December 31 December
comprehensive income 2019 2018

Car loans 121,217 -
Tatal loans to retail customers measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income 121,217 -

Significant credit exposures

As at 31 December 2019 the Group has three borrowers or groups of related borrowers (31 December 2018:
none), whose loan balances exceed 10% of equily. The gross value of these loans as at 31 December 2019 is
KZT 193,509 million {31 December 2018: none).

Loan maturities

The maturity of the Bank’s loan portfolio is presented in Note 37, which shows the remaining period from
the reporting date to the contractual maturity of the loans
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Property and equipment and intangible assets, continued

Should the cost of the building had been determined using the cost model, its carrying amount would have
been as follows:

2019 2018
Cost 59,464 625
Accumulated depreciation (5,090) (238)
Carrying amount 54,374 387

The fair values of the land plots and buildings are categorised into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Non—current assets held for sale

2019 2018

Balance at 1 January

Acquisition resulting {rom a business combination (Note 5) 3,538 -
Additions 18,071 -
Disposal (8,604) -
Effect of revaluation (4,185 -
Foreign exchange difference 324 -
Balance at 31 December 9,144 -

Non—current assets held for sale comprise the interest in the charter capital of the companies and real estate
that the Group has accepted in exchange for its rights of claim in relation to the impaired loans to customers,

In accordance with the Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Bank of 30 March 2019, management
announced its plans to sell the equity shares in the charter capital of the companies to contribute thereof to
the Group’s subsidiary, which is engaged in doubtful and bad assets management. At 31 December 2019 the
equity shares in the charter capital of the companies were accounted for as a dispesal group held for sale
(31 December 2018: nil).

Category of land, buildings and structures comprise non-residential premises. Management of the Group is
planning to complete a transaction on the sale of premises before 30 September 2020.

At 31 Decemnber 2019 given non-residential premises were accounied for as a disposal group held for sale
{31 December 2018: nil).

Investment property

Management of the Group believes that the carrying value of investment property items reflects their fair
value as at 31 December 2019, The fair value of investment property is categorised into Level 3 of the fair
vaiue hierarchy.

The fair value of investment property is based on a valuation by a qualified independent valuer involved by
management of the Group as at 31 December 2019.

2019 2018

Balance af 1 January 150 -
Aocquisition resulting from a business combination (Nofe 5) 9,532

Additions 479 -
[Yisposals (3,886) -
Remeasurement (936) 150
Foreign exchange difference 251 -
Balance at 31 December 5,590 150
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Other assets

Other assets include the following items:

Receivables on operations with currency

Fee and commission receivable on guaraniees issued
Commission receivalles

Amount due from local commercial bank
Receivables from collection agencies

Other receivables

Expected credit losses

Total other financial assets

Prepayments

Prepayment for office buildings
Repossessed collateral
Prepayments for intangible assets

Receivables from assignment of rights of claim on loans

Materials and supplies

Other

Loss allowance

Total other non—financial assets
Total other assets

Analysis of movements in impairment allowance

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
4,679 -
1,384 75

262 10
217 -
180 -
3,475 47
(1,493) @)
3,704 130
6,068 56
3,757 -
2,720 -
245 -
186
102 3
243 54
(3,097) -
10,224 113
18,928 243

Movements in the expected credit loss allowance for other financial assets for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are as follows:

ECL aHowance as at  January
Acquisition (Note 5)

Net reversal

Write—offs

ECL allowance 31 December

2019 2018
) -
(2,420) (2)
912 -

17 -
(1,493) )

Movements in the impairment allowance for other non—financial assets for the years ended
31 DPecember 2019 and 31 December 2018 are as follows:

ECT. allowance a5 at 1 January
Net charpe
Write offs

Movements in foreign exchange rates and other movements

I/l allowance 31 recember

As at 31 December 2019 included in cther non—financial assets are total overdue other receivables of

2019 2018

(3,124) -
67 -
(40) -
(3,097)

KZT 3,097 milkion, of which KZT 237 million are overdue for more than 90 dgys (31 Decemnlber 2018;

KZT none).
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Amounts due to banks and other finanecial institutions
Amounts due to banks and other financial institutions comprise the following items:

31 Decemaber 31 December

2019 2018
Loans from state companies 6,023 -
Loans from other banks and financial institutions 3,643 -
Correspondent accounts of other banks 159 -
9,835 —
Derivative financial instruments
Foreign currency contracts 1 -
0,836 -

As at 31 December 2019, loans received from state companies included loans from Entrepreneurship
Development Fund DAMU JSC (“Damu”) and Development Bank of Kazakhstan JSC (“DBK™) in the
amount of KZT 4,342 millicn and KZT 1,681 million, respeclively (31 December 2018: none). Loans are
denominated in tenge, bear the nominal interest rate of 0.1% per annum (effective interest rate is 11.5%) and
mature in 2034-2035.

As at 31 December 2019 the Group has no banks and financial institutions, whose balances exceed 10% of
equity {31 December 2018: none).

Amounts payable under repurchase agreements

31 December 31 December
2019 2018

Amounts payable under repurchase agreements 6,293 -

Securities pledged under repurchase agreements

At 31 December 2019, the Group holds amounts payable under the repurchase agreemenis of
KZT 6,293 million (31 December 2018: none), which are secured by investment securities measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income, with fair value of KZT 5,140 million (Note 22) and securities
measured at fair value through profit or loss, with fair value of KZT 1,305 million (Nose 21).

These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to standard lending, and securities
borrowing and lending activities. All transactions were clesed during next reporting month.

Amounts due to castomers

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

Current accounts and demand deposits
—~ Corporate 82,973 27,405
— Retzil 20,261 18
Term deposits
— Corporate 173,086 116,123
— Retail 512,998 -
— Acerued interest 2,306 438

791,624 143,984
Held as security of guarantees and letters of credit 1,186 30

As at 31 December 2019, the Group maintained customer deposit balances of KZT 9,588 million that serve
as collateral for loans and unrecognised credit instruments granted by the Group (31 Lecember 2018:
KZT 33 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has one customer (31 December 2(18: three customers), whose balances
exceed 10% of equity. The total balances of the above customer as at 31 December 2019 amount to
KZT 92,719 million (31 December 2018: KZT 131,414 million).
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Debt securities issued
The summary of debt securities issued at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 is presented below:

Carrying amount
Date of Year of Coupon Effective 31 December 31 December
issue maturity rate, p.a. rate, p.a. 2019 2018
KZT- denominated bonds
of the thirtieth issue 05.02.2019 05.02.2034 0.1% 11.5% 66,983 -
KZT- dencminated bonds
of the thirty~third issue 15.10.2018 29.01.2034 0.1% 11.5% 27,071 -
KZT- dencminated bonds
of the twenty-eighth issue 22.01.2019 22.01.2034 0.1% 11.5% 18,906 -
KZT- denominated bonds
of the thirty—fifth issue 28.01.2019  28.01.2034 0.1% 11.5% 11,187 -
KZT- denominated bonds Inflation rate
of the twentieth issue 04.06.2013  04.06.2023 +1.0% 8.3% 9,714 -
KZT- denominated bords
of the twenty-ninth issue  28.01.2019 28.01.2034 0.1% 11.5% 6,712 -
KZT- dencminated bonds
of the twenty—eighth issue  28.01.2019 28.01.2034 0.1% 11.5% 5,012 -
KZT- denominated bonds
of the seventh issue 11.07.2007 11.07.2027 7.5% 10.9% 2,813 —
KZT— denominated bonds
of the thirty—fourth issue  22.01.2019 22.01.2034 0.1% 11.5% 206 -
148,604 -

Issued debt securities of the Bank are listed on KASE.

As at 31 December 2019 the debt securities issued comprise the debt bonds denominated in tenge, which
mature in 20232034,

Reeonciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

2019 2018
Balance at 1 January - -
Acquisition resulting from a business combination (Note 5) 143,625 -
Changes from moventents in cask flows arising from financing
activities
Redemption of debt securities issued (7,163) -
(7,163) -
Interest expenses 13,969 -
Interest paid (1,827) -
Balance at 31 December 148,604 —
Subordinated debt
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Subordinaled bonds 12,199 -
Cumutative non-redeemable preference shares 151 -
72,950 -

As at 31 December 2019, subordinated debt comprises quoted bonds and 136,816 cumulative non—
redeemable preferred shares for the total amount of KZT [5] million. In case of bankruptcy, the redemption
of the subordinated debt would be made after the repayment in full of all other Habilities by the Group but
before repayment of the cumulative non-—redeemable preferred shares.
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Subordinated debt, continued
Subordinated bonds
The summary of subordinated bond issues at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 is presented below:

Carrying amount
Date of Year of Coupon Effective 31 December 31 December
issue maturity rate rate 2619 2018
KZT- denominated bonds  25.10.2017 25.10.2032 4.0% 15.0% 39,528
KZT- denominated bonds
of the twenty first issue 10.04.2014 10.04.2021 8.0% 9.7% 9,024
KZT- denominated bonds
of the fourteenth issue 04.06.2013  04.06.2020 8.0% 9.7% 4,981
KZT- denominated bonds
of the twenty second issue  10.04.2014  10.04.2021 8.0% 0.7% 4,953
KZT- denominated bonds
of the fifteenth issue 04.06.2013  04.06.2023 8.0% 9.7% 4,764
KZT- denominated bonds
of the sixteenth issue 04.06.2013  04.06.2028 9.0% 9.7% 4,750
KZ7T- denominated bonds
of the twenty third issue 10.04.2014 10.04.2021 8.0% 9.7% 2,983
KZT- denominated bonds  19.03.2013  19.03.2020 8.0% 9.7% 916
72,799

The Group's subordinated bonds issued are quoted on the KASE.
Participation in the Program of Strengthening Financial Stability of the Banking Sector

By Resolution of the NBRK No.191 dated 10 Qctober 2017, the Bank was approved to participate in the
Program of Strengthening Financial Stability of the Banking Sector in the Republic of Kazakhstan (the
“Program™).

According to the terms of the Program, the Bank received cash finds from the NBRK’s subsidiary, Joint

Stock Company “Kazakhstan Sustainability Fund”, by virtue of issue of the Bank’s registered coupon
subordinated bonds (“Bonds™) convertible to the Bank’s ordinary shares according to the terms of the Bond

Issue Prospectus.

The Group is subject to restrictions (covenants) in its activities valid for 5 years from the Bonds” issue date,
breach of any of each will result in exercising by the Bonds’ holders of their right of Bonds being converted
to the Group’s ordinary shares:

*  The Group undertakes to comply with capital adequacy ratios set by the authorised body for the second-
tier banks of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

*  The Group undertakes not to commit action intended to withdraw the Bank’s assets; at that, swmmary
of activities to be considered the withdrawal of assets is set out in the Bond Issue Prospectus.

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

2019 2018

Balance at 1 January - -
Acquisition resulting from a business combination (Nofe 35) §7,301 -
Changes from movements in cask flows arising from financing
activities
Redemption of subordinated debt (15,159 -

(15,159) N -
Interest expense 8,369
Interest paid {(7,561)
Balance at 31 Pecember 72,950 —
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Subordinated debt, continued

Cumulative non—redeemable preference shares

Holders of cumulative non—redeemable preference shares receive a minimum cumulative dividend of 10%
of the par value of their shareholding. The preference shares do not carry the right to vote unless the dividend
is in arrears. All shares rank equally with regard to distribution of residual value of the Bank’s net assets,
except that preference shareholders participate only to the extent of the face value of the shares adjusted for
any dividends in arrears. All preference shares were issued and fully paid at price of KZT 1,000 each.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group accrued dividends on cumulative non-redeemable preference shares in
the amount of KZT 14 million (as at 31 December 2018: nil).

Other liabilities

Other liabilities comprise the following items:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
Liabilities on electronic money issued 1,262 -
Insurance and reinsurance payables 1,201 -
Qther payables 2,834 145
Total other financial liabilities 5,297 145
Accounts payable to Mortgage Organisation “Baspana” JSC 4,833 -
Accrued vacation and other amounts due to employees 4,257 1,345
Provision for guarantees issues 3,311 -
Other taxes payable 684 8
Deferred income on guarantees and letters of credit issued 443 -
Other prepayments 83 -
Other non-financial liabilities 416 30
Total other non—financial liabilities 14,032 1,383
Total other liabilitics 19,329 1,528

Accounts payable to Mortgage Organization “Baspana™ JSC

In 2018, the NBRK approved the residential mortgage programmes “Mortgage Program “7-20-25 and
“Baspana Hit”. Main objective of these programme is providing opportunities to population to buy primary
housing and encouraging banks to provide related financing. According to the terms of “Mortgage Program
“7—20-257, loans are issued in KZT, carry an annual interest rate of 7.0% and mature in 23 years. The initial
contribution makes up 20.0%. According to the terms of “Baspana Hit” programme, Ioans are issued in KZT,
carry an annual nominal interest rate equal o a base rate of the National Bank of the RK + 175 basis points
and mature in 15 years. The initial contribution makes up 20.0%. No commission for issue and servicing a
loan is charged.

As part of the programmes “Mortgage Program “7-20-25" and “Baspana Hit”, the Bank issued mortgage
loans to customnos aud wansfered it o Mot lgage O1ganization “Baspana™ JSC (the “Operator™) in exchange
for consideration in cash in the amount of the loans’ nominal value. The Group acts as an agent under this
programme and receives a commission fee of 4.0% p.a. of the interest received. Under the conditions of
transfer of the Gioup’s assets [0 the Operator, il 4 defaull event in relation to the transferred loans occurs, the
Group is obligated to repurchase the transferred loans from the Operator, Therefore, the Group retains all the
credit risks and rewards of ownership of the loans transferred and continues to recogmise these loans in ifs
assels, As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of loans transferred to the Operator amounts to
KZT 4,833 million and the carrying amount of the liabilities amounts to KZT 4,832 million
(at 31 December 2018; nil).
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Share capital
Issued share capital

The pumber of authorised, placed and outstanding ordinary shares and share capital as at
31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
Common shares
Number of authorized shares 54,000,000 4,000,000
Number of placed shares 8,433,359 2,149,930
Number of treasury shares (149,486) (149,486)
Number of cuistanding shares 8,283,873 2,000,444

Holders of ordinary shares ore entitled to receive dividends when declared and have the right for one vote at
annual and general shareholders' meetings.

Movement in equity is presented as follows:

Number of shares Placement Capital excluding
excluding treasury price per 1 share, treasury shares,
shares KZT million KZT
As at 31 December 2018 2,000,444 - 19,786
Placement and payment of shares in
February—March 2019 6,283,429 11,140 70,002
As at 31 December 2019 8,283,873 - 89,788

Dividends

In accordance with the laws of the Republic of Kazakhstan and the Company’s charter documents, the
distributable reserves fall within the scope of the legal and regulatory framework of the Republic of
Kazakhstan.

Although ordinary sharehclders have veting rights, the dividend payment is not guarantead. Distributable
income is determined on the basis of income recorded in the Company’s separate financial statements.
According to the shareholders” meeting dd.11.10.19 for the year ended 31 December 2019, dividends in the
amount of KZT 422,976 thousand were declared and distributed (2018: KZT 36,008 thousand). The amount
of dividends per one ordinary share is KZT 51 (in 2018: KZT 18).

Nature and purpose of reserves
FProperty and equipment revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve of property, plant and equipment is wsed o recognise revaluation increase in fair
value of land and building as well as revaluation decrease in fair value of land and building, however,
revaluation decrease is recognised to the extent that it relates to a previous revaluation increase in the value
of the sume assct previously tecogised in cquily,

Fair value reserve

Fair value reserve comprises change in the fair value of financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Cumulative reserve for translation in presentation currency

Reserve for translation in presentation currency comprises foreign exchange reserve and is used to reflect the
translation differences, which arise in translation of the financial statements of foreign operations,
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Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share as at 31 December 2019 are based on the profit of KZT 277,795 million
(31 December 2018: profit of KZT 2,347 million), and a weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding of 7,672,964 (31 December 2018: 1,294,484 shares) and are calculated as fellows.

2019 2018
Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 277,795 2,347
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 7,672,964 1,204,484
Basic earnings per share, in KZT 36,204 1,813

Segment analysis

As at 31 December 2019 the Group has two reportable segments, as described below, which are the Group’s
strategic business units (31 December 2018: one business segment). The strategic business units offer
different products and services, and are managed separately because they tequire different technology and
marketing strategies. For each of the strategic business units, the chief operating decision maker reviews
internal management reports on at least a quarterly basis. The operations of each of the reportable segments
are summarised below:

®  hanking — inchides extension of loans, taking deposits and other transactions with customers; {rading
and corporate finance activities, funding the Group’s activities and banking risk management through
borrowings, and issue of debt securities;

s insurance — conducting insurance and reinsurance activities.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. The segments’ performance
is assessed based on a segment’s profit before income tax, as included in the internal management reports
based on statutory financial statements, that are reviewed by the Chairman of the Board of the Group. Segment
profit is used to evaluate the segment’s operating results as management believes that such information is the
most relevant in evalvating the results of certain segments relative to others who operate within thess
industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arim’s length basis.

Segment breakdown of assets and liabilities is set out below:

31 December

2019

ABSETS

Banking 1,493,268
Insnrance 17,043
Unallocated assets 113,735
Total assets 1,624,076
LIABILITIES

Banking 1,126,005
Insurance 7,440
Unallocated liabilities 4,555
Total liabilities 1,138,000
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36. Segment analysis, continued
Segment information for the main reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

Unaflocated

Banking Insurance segments Total
Interest income calculated using the
effective interest rate 117,924 752 665 119,341
Other interest income 9,724 259 442 10,425
Fee and commission income 9,713 296 1,772 11,781
Gross earned insurance premiums - 5,694 - 5,694
Dividend income - - 5,673 5,673
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
measured at FVOCI 1,364 - 2 1,366
Net gain on securities at fair value
through profit or loss 132 (1) 300 631
Net gains from foreign currencies 8,042 (25) (93) 8,824
Other income from reversal of provisicns 6,923 - - 6,923
Other operating (expense)/income (422) 19 608 205
Revenne 154 300 6,994 9,569 170,863
Interest expense (62,660) - (309) {62,969)
Fee and commission expense (3,660) (1,448) (131) {5,239
Written premiums ceded to reinsurers
and reinsurers’ share of change in the
gross provision for unearned premiums - (1,521) - {1,521)
Net insurance ¢laims incurred - (1,063) - {1,063)
Impairment losses 1,458 (84) (195) 1,179
Loss on investments in subsidiaries (37,943) - - (37,943)
Loss on revaluation of property and
equipment and intangible assets (1,240) - - {1,240)
Loss on revaluation of assets held for
sale and investment property (4,192) - 327 {3,865)
Personnel expenses (20,437) (1,169) (2,002) (23,608)
Cther general administrative expenses (21,954) (530) (1,014) {23,498)
Segment financial result 3,672 1,179 6,245 11,096
Income lax expense (9.457)
Net profit after taxes m
Other segment items
Additions of property and equipment 1,135 31 L 1,284
Depreciation and amortisation 4,232 43 194 4,469
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Segment analysis, continned

Inierest expenses is allocated between the segments on the basis of information presented in the consolidated
financial statements of each reporting segment, taking into account the elimination of intra~Group operations.

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

31 December
2019

Revenne
Total revenue for reportable segments 170,863
Elimination of inter-segment revenue {6,318)
Consolidated revenue 164,345
Profit or loss
Total revenue for reportable segments 1,639
Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary 243,690
Elimination of inter-segment profit or loss 32,466
Consolidated profit for the year 277,795
ASSETS
Total assets for reportable segments 1,624,076
Elimination of inter—segment assets (116,091)
Consolidated assets 1,507,985
Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportabls segments 1,138,000
Elimination of inter—segment liabilities {5,308)
Consolidated liabilities 1,132,694

The geographic information for 2019 below analyses the Group’s revenue and non—current assets by the
couniry of domicile and other countries.

Non—current
Income assets
The Republic of Kazakhstan 145,345 59,352
Russian Federation 25,518 8,253
Tatal 170,863 67,605

The majority of revenues from external customers relate to residents of the Republic of Kazakhstan. The
majority of non—cwrent assets are located in the Republic of Kazakhstan. As at 31 December 2019, non—
current assets (property and equipment and intangible assets, investment property) of KZT 8,523 million are
located in the Russian Federation (31 December 201 8: nil).

The Group operates in the Republic of Kazakhstan and foreign countries. In presenting the geographic
information, the allocation of revenue has been based on the geographic location of customers and assets.

Major cusiomers

For the year ended 31 December 2019, no customers of the reportable segments tepresented more than 10%
of the Group’s total revenue.

Risk management

Management of risk is fundamental to the business of banking and forms an essential element of the Group’s
operations. The major risks faced by the Company are those related to market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk
as well as operational, legal and reputational risks.

Risk munagement policies and procedures

The Group’s risk management policy has the following objectives: to identify, analyse and manage risks faced
by the Group, establish limits on risk levels and relevant controls; and continucusly assess levels of risks and
ensure that exposure to risks stays within the established limits. Risk management policies and procedures
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, bank products and services offered and
emerging best practice,
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Risk management, continued
Risk manugement policies and procedures, continued

The Board of Directors of the Group has overall responsibility for the oversight of the risk management
framework, overseeing the management of key risks and approving its risk management policies and
procedures as well as approving significant large exposures.

The Management Board is responsible for monitoring and implementating risk mitigation measures and
ensuring that the Group operates within established risk parameters. The Head of Risk Department is
responsible for the overall risk management and conipliance functions, ensuring the implementation of
common principles and methods for identifying, measuring, managing and reporting both financial and non—
financial risks. The director of these Risk Departments is the Chief Risk Officer (“CRQO”).

Credit, market and liquidity risks are managed and controlled by the Board of Directors, Management Board
and through a system of Credit Committees and the Authorised Collegial Bodies (“ACB™). In order to
facilitate efficient and effective decision-making, the Group established a hierarchy of credit committees,
depending on the type and amouxt of the exposure,

Both external and internal risk factors are identified and managed throughout the Group. Particular attention
is given to identifying the foll range of risk factors and determination of the level of assurance over the current
risk mitigation procedures. Apart from the standard credit, market and liquidity risk analysis, the Risk
Department monitors operational risks by holding regular meetings with operational units in order to obtain
expert judgments in their areas of expertise.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes i market prices. Market risk comprises currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risks.
Market risk arises from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity financial instruments, which are
exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market prices and
foreign currency rates.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, whilst optimising the return on risk.

QOverall authority for market risk is vested in the Management Board and Board of Directors. Market risk
limits are approved by Management Board and Board of Directors based on recommendations of the Market
Risk Department.

The Group manages its market risk by setting open position limits in relation tc consolidated financial
instruments, interest rate maturity and currency positions and stop—ltoss limits. These are monitored on a
regular basis and reviewed by the Management Board and approved by the Board of Directors.

The Group also utilises Value—at-Risk (*VaR™) methodology to monitor market risk of its trading positions.
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair valve or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to the effects of fluctmations in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows. Interest margins may
increase as a result of such changes but may also reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected
movements oconr,




[4}]

STT'PRE 909 (0ze'rt) (095°cr} (ro1°,81) 1LYSLT 968°91¥

LOEGTOT 16826 LbL 06T YIFs0g TrUsst 67979 PLETTI
056'TL A 01ser 615CT T68°S L16 - PONSST SANIINGSS 165D PIJRUIPIOYNS
POO'SPI - £6Z°3¢€1 - £98°6 tL 9L1 PONSSE SANLINOSS 19T
PO 164 6LLTS LeL'e 0€5°6LT LIFGET CrP'19 199511 SISWIOISNS 3] NP SHUNOUIY
€629 - - — - - £67°0 stustnearde sseqamndar sepun syqeded sjunoury
9£8°6 - L1Z9 SLEE - - 24 SUONTGNSTY [BIOTEULY JSYO DUk SULq ) NP SIENOUTY
SHILITIAVIT

TESEV'T €ES°6ST LTFOPT 98197 8€I°89 0DE'BET 0L7°6€S
AT - - $0L°69 9¢g - - STHAIA 9Y) WOL $230T AI0SSTUION]
IS9b1H 6 61926 60991 PIEEE §18°¢ T6L'O1I SISEIOISND 0 SURDT
8PSE 98¢z 9 - 8Pl - 26¢ STONTYIISHI [RIOURLT] JOT0 DUR SYURQ W] ONIp SJUNOUTY
$ES°609 9 979°¢S SPI°IT £61'RT FE0°2ET SLIPLT SINDTIV0S JUSUNSIATY
9Z1%1 LIET 9¢1 €96y Lyo's 142 £12C $s0 10 35j01d
ENCI]) anjEA IEY 18 painses SIUSTINNSUL [erduear]
IEP'10€ 6EL'SST - - - - Z69°CH] JUS[BAINDS [SED PUR se))
SLESSY
6T0OT T2qMa2( €

Junowe Suneag saeak sIuaA SY3uowW SYIUowW uon:
JuiAixe) JSURUI-TGN € UBY) IO ¥ ZY 0} € wroag £0) | woaq I UWEeY) $837]

ISMO]JOF S® ST SIUSTIANSTY [erotiewyy yofew Joy nonisod des 1so0)u oy Jo Arsunmns v *sded s1er sexum Suuoyuow ySnory) ATredrounic poSeurm s1 YSIx oJel 1SR
sisdppun dog appa jSa4Ruy
PAnUNUND “YSII JAHIEIA]

PIRUNUGY “JudTnISeuRur STy

(pa1ris asiiaypo ssopun afuay mvisyyrsoy fo suoyjnu uy)

G107 A0f SIUSWIG IDISUBLLY PRIOPIOSUCT) BY OF SPI0N
fuvdnioy Yo0ig HAGF SIRINIZS PUDILDIES I540]

Le



£8

S8S°IT 9IT'ST §1 yis SRTET (s05) (0sLoT)

P86 EPT - - - - ope's SEY°REL

¥RESHI - - - - 9pe’s 8€9°8€1

695591 OTT' -1 vee S8T'ET I#8r 888171

6E - - Le - - z

699001 - - - gSH'1T 0£9° 18588

£79°S PLL S L8 1€l I1e STEE

8ETSS [A 234 - - 91y - 086°6¢
jnouie SuLIeaq sIeak saeak sy3uout sH)uour SYJEOLH
smiLz) ISAINMW-TON S UBIY JTOJY] o § 71 O £ woxq €01 T Woxg 1 HEY) SS¥]

SISHIO)SNO O] SUP SJUNOUNY

SAILI'TIAVIT

SIDMOISND 0] SURO]
SATJEINOSS JUALISIAU]

ssof Ie yipord
qBnonyp aufea Iy 18 pAInSgalll JUSTINNST [RTOIRUL]

syuarzaInba gseo pue ysed
S1HSSY
BYOT 0] 1€

sisdmun dud o psoaaguy
PILMIIUCD "HSLI JONIRTA]
PANULUO0Y YuATUITE UL HSTY

{P2i0IS aSIuIdYI0 SSajUn 2BUST HICISYNDZDY [0 suoni 1)

G107 40f SHDWRIDIC IDIDUDLLLT DIIDPIOSHOT) Bif 01 SAION
Aipdire) Y2015 IHT0f SIS PUVIIADIE] 1SILT

LE




37.

Firse Heartland Securities Joint Stock Company
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2019

(in millions of Kazakhstani tenge unless otherwise stated)

Risk management, continued
Maxket risk, continued
Average effective interest rates

The table below shows average effective interest rates for interest—bearing assets and financial liabilities as
at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018:; These interest rates are an approximation of the yields to
maturity of these assets and liabilities.

2019 2018
Average effective interest rate, % Average effective inferest rate, %
Other Other
KZT USD currencies KZT USD currencies

Interest bearing assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9.52 1.47 6.30 9.27 1.52 -
Amounts due from banks and
other financial institutions 8.59 1.80 - - - -
Financial instruments measured
al Fair value through profit or
loss 11.37 291 - 9.32 1.34 -
Investment securifies measured
at fair value through other
comprehensive income 2.03 2.59 0.60 8.80 - -
Investment securitics measured
at amortised cost 8.16 3.36 - 8.568 3.98 -
Loans to customers 17.70 10.44 19.88 5.60 - -
Promissory notes from the MFRK ~ 4.04 - - — —
Interest bearing liabilities
Amounts due to banks and other
financial institutions 11.26 - - - - -
Amounts due to customers 10.40 1.74 1.15 5.51 0.05 -
Debt securities issued 11.28 - - - - -
Subordinated debt 12.57 - - - - -
Lease liabilities 13.25 4,00 7.45 - - -
Amounts payable under
repurchase agreements 9.86 = - = - -

Iuterest rate sensitivity analysis

The management of interest rate risk based on interest rate gap analysis is supplemented by monitoring the
sensitivity of financial assets and Habilities in bank book. An analysis of sensitivity of profit or loss (net of
taxes) and equity to changes in interest rate (repricing risk) based on a simplified scenario of a 100 basis point
(bp) symmetrical fall or rise in all yield curves and positions of interest—bearing assets and liabilities expected
during a 12-month period, existing as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 is as follows:

2019 2018
Profit or loss Equity Profit or loss Equity
100 bp paraliel fall (3,806} (3,806) 92 a2
100 bp paraikel rise 3,806 3,806 (92) (92)

An analysis of sensitivity of profit or loss and equity as a result of changes in the fair value of financial
instruments st fair value though profit or loss and financial assets measured at FVOC] due to changes in the
interest rates based on positions existing as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 and a simplified
scenario of a 100 basis point (bp) symumetrical fall or risc in all yield curves using modified duration method
is us follows:

2019 2018
Profit or losg Fquity Profit or loss Equity
100 bp parallel fall 6,278 802 159 -
100 bp parallel rise (6,291) (802) {154) -
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Risk management, continued
Currency risk
The Group has assets and liabilities denominated in several foreign currencies.

Currency risk s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will finctuate because
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates,

The following table shows the foreign currency exposure structure of financial assets and liabilities as at
31 December 2019;

Other

KZT USD EUR RUB  currencies 'Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 122,273 66,319 83,463 27,710 Le66 301,431
Securities measured at fair
value throagh profit or foss TAXT 6,637 - - 62 14,126
Investment securities 535,418 20,473 53,644 - 609,535
Amounts due from banks and
other financial institutions 2,329 112 - 1,105 2 3,548
Loans to customers 226,860 59,459 243 128,089 - 414,651
Promissory notes from the
MFRK ¥ - 70,241 - - - 70,241
Insurance premiums and
reinsurance assets 1,113 - - - - 1,113
Other financial assets 2,262 73 6,016 353 ~ 8,704
Total assets 897,682 223,314 143,366 157,257 1,730 1,423,349
LIABILITIES
Amounts due to banks and
other financial institutions 9.713 115 8 - - 9,836
Amounts payable under
repurchase agreements 6,293 - - - - 6,293
Amounts due to customers 346,630 285,664 21,951 135,788 1,591 791,624
Debt securities issued 148,604 - - - - 148,604
Subordinated debt 72,950 - - - - 72,950
Lease liabilities 3,540 30 - 919 - 4,489
Other financial liabilities 3,504 305 75 1,413 - 5,297
Total liabilities 591,234 286,114 22,034 138,120 1,591 1,039,093
Net position as at
31 December 2019 306,448 (62,300) 121,332 19,137 139 384,256
The: effect of derivatives held
for risk management 1,291 124,570 (121,193) (4,697) - 29
Net position with the effect of
derivatives held for risk
management as at
31 December 2019 307,739 61,770 139 14,440 139 384,227

* Promissory notes from the MFRK are denominated in KZT but are indexed to the change in US dollar to
KZT exchange rate,
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Risk management, continued
Currency risk, continued

The following table shows the foreign currency exposure struciure of financial assets and liabilities as at
31 December 2018:

Other

KZT USDh EUR RUB currencies  Total
ASSETS
Cask and cash equivalents 12,319 30,332 10,233 62 2,202 55,238
Securities measured at fair
vahie through profit or loss 2,000 3,623 - - - 5,623
Investment securities 101,056 3,613 - — - 104,669
Loans to customers 39 - - - - 30
Other financial assets 68 62 — - - 130
Total asscts 115,482 37,030 10,233 62 2,292 165,699
LIABILITIES
Amounts due to customers 97,711 42,526 1,451 5 2,291 143,984
Other financial Habilities 55 42 48 - - 145
Total liabilities 97,766 42,568 1,499 5 2,291 144,129
Net position as at
31 December 2019 17,716 (4,938) 8,734 57 1 21,570
The effect of derivatives held
for risk management (684} 8,505 (8,787) - — 34
Net position with the effect of
derivatives held for risk
management as at
31 December 2019 17,032 4,567 {53) a7 1 21,604

A weakening of the KZT, as indicated below, against the following currencies at 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2018, would have decreased/increased equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below.
This analysis is on net of tax basis and is based on foreign currency exchange rate variances that the Group
considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. The analysis assumes that al other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

2019 2018
Profit or loss Equity Profit or loss Equity
20% appreciation of USD against KZT 9,883 9,883 731 731
20% appreciation of EUR against KZT 22 22 (8 (8)
20% appreciation of RUB against KZT 2,310 2,310 9 9

A strengthening of the KZT against the above currencies at 31 December 2019 and 2018 would have had the
equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other
variables remain constant.

Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial nstrument will fluctmate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether
those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrament or its issuer, or factors
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. Other price risk arises when the Group takes
a long or short position in a financial instrument.

An analysis of sensitivity of profit or loss and equity to changes in equity securities prices based on pogitions
for equity instruments existing as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 and a simplified scenario of a 10% change
in all equity securities prices is as follows:

2019 2018
Profiterloss  Equily Profitorloss  Equity
10% increase in securities prices 109 5 22 -
10% decrease in securities prices (109) 6)) (22) -
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Risk management, continued
Credit risk

Credit risk is the probability of financial loss to the Group if 2 customer or counterparty fails to meet its
contractual obligations according to agreed terms. The Group has policies and procedures in place to manage
credit exposures (both for recognised financial assets and unrecognised contractual commitments), including
guidelines to limit portfolio concentration and the establishment of a Credit Commitice to actively monitor
credit risk. The credit policy is reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors.

The credit policy establishes and determines the major requitements to be followed in lending activity,
inciuding:

*  aims and objectives the Group’s lending activity;
*  priorities and restrictions in lending;

*  credit risk allowable level;

*  system of the credit risk limits;

*  ‘torms of granting loans to the individuals and legal entities, including entities having special relations
with the Banl;

*  stages and participants of the lending process;

*  decision-making system;

*  key principles and methods of credit risk management in the Group;
*  internal control system for the credit risk management process.

On the basis of the Credit Policy, which covers the key directions of the Group’s activity and the system of
the credit risk management instruments, the Group has built a more efficient lending process in the segments
of the corporate business, small— and medium—size business and retail business, as described below.

Corporate and SME loan credit applications are analysed by the Credit Analysis Department and SME lending
divisions in branches, respectively, which are responsible for the analysis of issuing loans. The minimum
rating required for the borrower to obtain a loan has been established in accordance with the decision of the
Board of Directors of the Group.

Then, to consider a project at the meeting of the anthorised body that makes decisions on concluding a
transaction, the opinions of the Group’s departments are provided, including;

*  opinion of the Legal Department;

¢ opinion of the Security Department;

*  opinion of the Collatera] Department;

*  and opinion of the Risk Management Department.

For the purpose of effective risk management, the Risk Management Department, while analysing the
projects, assigns a rating (probability of default) to the borrower.

Currently, the Group uses the rating and scoring models for each business seguient. sinall, medium, corporate
and retail clicnts,

Based on Lhe submitted opmions, the Credit Committee makes a decision depending on the level of authority
to make decisions. Tu this case, transactions in excess of 5% of the Group’s cquity are approved exclusively
by the decision of the Board of Directors of the Group.

Retail loan credit applications are reviewed by the Retail Lending Department through the use of scoring
models and application data verification procedures developed together with the Risk management,

To achieve the Group’s key performance indicators, while setting the interest rates for the customers from
the cotpuiate business, SMIT and retail business, the level of eredil risk accepted under each Lansaciion is
taken into account, and at least the following factors are analysed:

- rating/scoring (probability of default of the borrowers);
- losses if the borrower defaults;
- funding costs;
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Risk management, continued
Credit risk, continued

- costof capital;

- the Group’s overheads,

As a part of this lending process, to ensure the timely response to the changes in the financial position and
paying capacity of the Borrower and ability to make the appropriate management decisions, the Group
exercises the ongomng monitoring of the status of individual loans, and regularly revalues the paying capacity
of its borrowers. Revaluation procedures are based on the financial statements and other infermation provided
by the borrower itself or otherwise obtained by the Group,

Also, requirements to collateral are very important for the management of credit risk. The Group had
developed and implemented effective procedures for the monitoring of collateral, in order to avoid the
decrease of coverage of the credit portfolio by the collateral,

To ensure the sffective risk management at the portfolio level the Group uses such methods as diversification
of the loan portfolio and system of management reporting, which allows exercising the regular monitoring of
the Group lending activity, identifying the major problems and implementing the risk minimisation
mstruments as well as stress~testing of credit risk.

The Group uses the system of credit risk limits, which COmprises:

¢ credit risk allowable level;

*  limits by the categories of borrowers;

*  limits on the types of lending;

*  limits for the retail segment, comprising the portfolio limits and individual limits;
*  limits on lending in terms of the specific industries, etc.

Monitoring and control are exercised periodically and findings are submitted for consideration to the
Management Board/Board of Directors of the Group.

This instrument allows the Group to control the lending activity based on the strategic development targets
and risk taking in different areas.

The system of manragement reporting is functioning within the Group, the purpose of which is to provide the
high quality, reliable and accurate information on the credit risk level and its deviation from the set value.
The management reports are generated at the level of both the Group and individual segments on a
monthly/quarterly basis, and submitted for consideration to the Management Board/Board of Directors of the
Group.

The Group applies the methodology of credit risk stress—testing, which is performed using a scenario analysis
and sensitivity analysis. While performing the stress —testing, the Group uses the following scenarios:

*  general business scenario, which is based on assessment of influence of deterioration of the economic
situation in the country, including decline in economic growth in general and in individual industries:

*  scenarjo specific to the Group’s business, which is based on assessment of influence of the local siress—
factors, including those related to the specifics of the Bank’s lending notivity and structure of iis loan
portfolio,

Credit risk stress—testing makes it possible (o respond on a timely basis to changes in macroeconomic and
other indicators that may adversely affect the Group’s operations, and Lo forecast the impact of these factors
and develop risk mitigation methods.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is generally reflected in the carrying amounts of financial assets on the
consolidated statement of financial position and unrecognised contractual commitment amounts. The impact
of possible netting of assets and liabilities to reduce potential credit exposure is not significant.
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Risk management, continued
Credit risk, confinued

The maximum exposure to credit risk from financial assets at the reporting date is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 260,246 54,001
Amounts due from banks and other financial nstitutions 3,548 -
Securities measured at fair value through profit or loss 12,764 5,349
Investment securities 609,473 104,669
Loans to customers 414,651 39
Promissory notes from the MFRK 70,241 -
Insurance premiums 3,313 -
Other financial assets 8,704 130
Total maximum exposure 1,382,940 164,188

For the analysis of concentration of credit risk in respect of Joans to customers refer to Note 23.

The maximum exposure to credit risk from unrecognised coniractual commitments at the reporting date is
presented in Note 37.

As at 31 December 2019 the Group has no debtors or groups of related debtors (31 December 2018: none),
credit risk exposure to whom exceeds 10% of maximum credit risk exposure,

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial assets and financial liahilities that:
*  are offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position; or

*  are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that covers similar
financial instruments, irrespective of whether they are offset in the consolidated statement of financial
position,

Similar agreements include derivative clearing agresments, global master repurchase agreements, and global
master securities lending agreements. Similar financial instruments inchude derivatives, sales and repurchase
agreements, reverse sale and repurchase agreements and securities borrowing and lending agreements.

The Group receives and accepts collateral in the form of cash and marketable securities in respect of the
following transactions:

- loans to customers collateralised by cash on bank deposits; and
- repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements.

This means that securities received/given as collatorsl can be pledged ot sold duiing the term of the
transaction butl must be returned on maturity of the transaction. The terms also give each counterpartly the
right to terminate the related transitions upon the counterparty’s failure to post collateral.
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Risk management, continued
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities, continued

The table below shows financial assets and financial liabilities subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement as at 31 December 2019;

Net amount of Related amounts not offset
financial in the consolidated statement
assets/liabilities of financial position

presented in the
Gross amounts  consolidated
of recognised  statement of Cash
TFypes of financial finaneial finaneial Financial coliateral Net
assets/lizbilities assets/liabilities position instruments received amount
Securities measured at
fair value through profit
or loss 1,305 1,305 (1,305) - -
Loans to customers 14,638 14,638 — (4,074) 10614
Amounts receivable
under reverse
repurchase agreements 24,563 24563 (24,563} - —
Total financial assets 40,556 40,556 {25,868) (4,074) 10,614
Amounts due to
customers 4,074 4,074 (4,074) - -
Amounts payable under
repurchase agreements 6,292 6,292 (6,292) - —
Totzal financial
liabilities 10,366 10,366 (10,366) - -

The table below shows financial assets and financial Habilities subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement as at 31 December 2018:

Net amount of Related amounts not offset
finaneial  in the consolidated statement
assets/liabilities of financial position
presented in

the
Gross amounts consolidated
of recognised  statement of Cash
Types of financial financial financial Financial collateral
assets/liabilities assets/liabilities position instruments received Net amount
Securities measured at fair
value through profit or
loss - - - - -
Loans to customers 39 39 - (33} 6
Amounts receivable under
reverse repurchase
agreements . 130 136 (130 - -
'T'otal financial assets 169 169 (130} (33) o
Amounts due to customers 32 33 (33) -
Total financial
liabilities 33 33 (33) - -

The securities lent under agreements to repurchase represent the transferred financial assets that are not
entirely derecogmised,
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Risk management, continued
Offsetting financial assets and financial labilities, continued

The gross amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities and their net amounts as presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position that are disclosed in the above tables are measured in the
consolidated statement of financial position at amortised cost. The amounts in the above tables that are offset
in the consolidated statement of financial position are measured on the same basis.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk exists when the
maturities of assets and Liabilities do not match. The matching and or controlled mismatching of the maturities
and interest rates of assets and liabilities is fundamental to liquidity management. It is unusual for financial
Institutions ever to be completely matched, since business transacted is often of an uncertain term and of
different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of
Josses.

The Group maintams hquidity management with the objective of ensuring that funds will be available at all
times to honour all cash flow obligations as they become due. The Group’s liquidity policy is reviewed Ly
the Management Board and approved by the Board of Directors.

Tre key objectives of the Group’s liquidity risk management are as follows:

*  toensure that the Group is able to discharge its liabilities in time and in full scope;

*  toinvest the Group’s free cash flows in high income earning and highly liquid assets.

In the process of liquidity risk management the Group is governed by the following principles:
*  liquidity is managed on a day—to—day basis and continuously;

*  sound management of assets and liabilities;

*  management of access to the interbank market;

*  diversification and stability of liabilities;

*  application of the methods and instruments for the liquidity risk assessment, which do not contradict the
regulatory legal acts of the NBRK;

*  clear split of powers and responsibility for liquidity management between the bodies of the Group, its
officials and business units;

*  setting of limits that ensure the adequate level of liquidity and meet the size, nature of business and
financial position of the Group;

*  incase of a conflict between the liquidity and returns, to make decision in favour of liguidity;
*  planning of the liquidity requirements;
*  regular monitoring of the decisions to provide liquidity, which have been made before.

Liquidity risk management policy provides for assessment of the total liquidity requirement under both
normal and stressed conditions, taking into account the Group's strategy and those types of activity, which
oxpose the Group to the liquidity tisk; allowable level of the Group's risk, within the limits of which the
Group sets the system of liquidity risk internal limits; size, nature and complexity of the Group®s business,
and legislation of the RK.

To manage the Hquidity risk, n system of the liquidily 1isk inanagement is established, which is based on the
stendards and instruments recommended by Basel Committec on Bank Supervision aud complies wills the
requirements of the NBRK and best global practices. The liquidity risk management system meefs the current
market situation, strategy, size and level of complexity of the Group’s operations and ensures the efficient
tdenulication, measurement, monitoring and conliol of the Group liquidity risk, with due consideration of the
infra—pgroup transactions.

The Group seeks to actively support a diversified and stable funding base comprising debt securities in issue,
long— and short-term loans from other banks, core corporate and refail customer deposits, accompanied by
diversified portfolios of highly liquid assets, in order to be able to respond quickly and efficiently to
unforeseen liquidity requirements.
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(in millions of Kazalhstani tenge unless otherwise stated}

Risk management, continued
Operational risk

Operational risk is the probability of loss arising from a wide variety of canses associated with the Group’s
processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors, such as those arising from
legal and regulatory requirements (excluding strategic risk and reputational risk).

The Group had developed the policy on operational risk management, which was approved by the Board of
Directors.

The Group is establishing the system of operational risk management that is organised in three levels:
*+  Level 1 - risk management by the departments of the Group.
*  Level 2—risk management by the independent operational risk management department.

*  Level 3 — independent assessment of operational risk management system effectiveness by the internal
audit department.

Level 1 relates to risk coordinators that were appointed in the departments of the Group, who are responsible
for the collection and direction of information about the operational risk to the risk management department.
Risk management department conducts the edncation of risk coordinators of the Group and controls the work
performed by risk coordinators,

The Group uses antomated systems for the collestion and analysis of information about operation risk events.
Risk coordinators collect the information about operation risk events, each event is evaluated by the risk
managerent department together with process holders and then directed to the specialised collegial body.

Additional instrument of operational risk management is the process of self-assessment of operational risk in
the departments of the Group. Self-assessment is conducted by risk management coordinators directed by the
risk management department, The results are organised in risk maps.

Separate operational risk assessment is conducted before implementation of new products, processes and
systems.

On a monthly basis, Management Board and Board of Directors review the information on operational risk

Capital management

The Group, being a banking conglomerate, defines as capital those items defined by statutory regulation as
capital for credit institutions. Under the current capital requirements set by the NBRK banking conglomerates
have to maintain a ratio of total capital to risk weighted assets, contingent liabilities above the prescribed
minimum level. As at 31 December 2019 this minimum level of total capital to risk weighted assets and
contingent liabilities is 10% (2018: 10%). As at 31 December 2019 the Group’s ratio was equal to 66%
(31 December 2018: 78.3%).

Bank

NERK sets and monitors capital requirements for the Bank. The Bank defines as capital those items defined
by statutory regulation as capital for credit institations,

- Tier 1 capital is a total of basic and additional capital. Basic capital comprises ordinary share capital,
share premium, current and prior periods’ retained earnings and reserves created thereof, less treasury
share caprtal, intangible assets including goodwill, and current and prior periods losses, deferred tax
asset net of deferred tax liability and other revaluation reserves. Additional capital comprises of
perpetual contracts and paid—in preference share capital less adjustments for the Group’s investment in
its own perpetual [inancial instruments and treasury preference shares. Tier 2 capital, which comprises
the subordinated debt denominated in the national currency, less investments in the subordinated dels
of the financial organtsations not consolidated with the Bank under [FRS.

Total capital is the sum of tier I and tier 2 capital less difference between retail deposits and equity according
to the balance sheet data, multiplied by 5.5, and less the positive difference between provisions (reserves)
calculated in accordance with the Guidelines on ereation of provisions (reserves) for impairmant of the bank s
assets in the form of loans and receivables as per Appendix 1 to the Regulations and provisions (reserves)
created and stated in the banks’ accounting records under IFRS and the requirements of the Law of the RK
on Accounting and Financial Reporting (the “positive difference™). Various further limits and qualifying
criteria are applied to the above elements of the capital base.

~
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Capital management, continued
Bank, continuned

In accordance with the regulations set by the NBRK the Group has to maintain total capital adequacy within
the following coefficients:

*  aratio of basic capital to the sum of credit risk-weighted assets and, contingent Habilities market risk--
weighted assets and contingent assets and liabilities, and quantified operational risk (k1) at least at 0.075;

*  aratio of tier 1 capital, net of investments, to the sum of credit risk-weighted assets and, contingent
liabilities, market risk—weighted assets and contingent Habilities and quantified operational risk (k1-2)
at least at 0.085;

*  aratio of equity to the sum of credit risk—weighted assets and, contingent liabilities, market risk weighted
assets and, contingent assets and liabilities , and quantified calculated based on the market risk and a
quantitative measure of operational risk (k2) at least at 0.100.

The Bank is subject to minimum capital requirements caleulated in accordance with the requirements
established by the NBRK:

31 December 31 December

2619 2018

Tier 1 capital 339,028 13,532
Tier 2 capifal 106,588 13,532
Positive difference deductible from equity - -
Total statutory capital 445,616 27.064
Total risk weighted statutory assets, contingent liabilities,

operational and market risk 551,180 -
ki 0.613 0.581
k1.2 0.615 0.581
k.2 0.808 0.581

First Hearlland Securities JSC

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business, The
adequacy of the Company’s, capital is monitored using, among other measures, the, ratios established by the
NBRK. During 2019 the Company complied with its capital Tequirements imposed by the NBRX.

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management are to ensure that the Company complies with
externally imposed capital requirements and that the Company maintains strong credit ratings and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholders’ value. According to the
requirements of the NBRX, the capital adequacy ratio for brokerage and{or) dealer companies must be at least
1. From 1 Janmary 2019, the liquidity ratio should be at least 1.3. Liquid assets and liabilities calculated in
accordance with the NBRK requirements were derived from the Company's separate financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company’s capital adequacy ratio on this basis exceeded the statutory
minimum,

At 31 December, the Company’s capital adequacy ratio calculated according to the NBRK requirements was
as follow:

31 December 31 Decembor

2019 ) 2018
Liyuid assels 14,079 9,113
Liabilities (2,188) {601)
Net liguid assets 11,891 8,512
Minimum capital required by NBRK 189 180
Capifal adequacy ratio 62.79 47.19
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Credit related commitments

The Group has outstanding credit related commitments to extend loans. These credit related commitments
take the form of approved loans and credit card limits and overdraft facilities.

The Group provides financial guarantees and letters of credit to guarantee the performance of customers to
third parties. These agreements have fixed limits and generally extend for a period of up to five years. The
Group alse provides guarantees by acting as settlement agent in securities borrowing and lending transactions.

The Group applies the same credit risk management policies and procedures when granting credit
commitments, financial guarantees and letters of credit as it does for granting loans to customers,

The contractual amounts of credit related commitments are set out in the following table by category. The
amounts reflected in the table for credit related commitments assume that amounts are fully advanced. The
amounts reflected in the table for guarantees and letters of credit represent the maximum accounting loss that
would be recognised at the reporting date if the counterparties failed completely to perform as contracted.

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
Financial guarantees issued 1,979 48
Eetters of credit 108 -
Credit card commitments 444 -
2,531 48
Less: amounts due to customers held to secure the guarantees and
letters of credits {1,186} -
1,345 48

Agreements for credit— and credit line-related commitments provide for the Group’s right to unilaterally
withdraw from an agreement once conditions unfavourable to the Group have arisen, including change of
refinancing, inflation and exchange rates, and other conditions.

Total outstanding contractual amount of credit- and credit line-related commitments, and guarantees and
letters of credit does not necessarily represent future cash claims as the term of commitments may expire or
the said commitments may be cancelled without fands being provided to the borrower.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has no outstanding off-balance sheet commitments that exceed 10% of
equity (31 December 2018: none).

Operating lease

Leases as lessee

Non—cancellable operating lease rentals as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are payable as
follows:

31 December 31 December
2019 2018

Less than one year 06 -

The Group leases a number of premises and equipment under operating leases. The leases typically run for
an initial peried of one to five years, with an option to then renew the lease. Lease payments are usually
increased annwally to reflect market rentals. None of the leases include contingent rentals.,

During the reporting period KZT 1,131 million were recognised as expense in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in respect of operating leases (31 December 2018:
KZT 59 million).
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Contingencies

Insurance

The insurance industry in the RK is in a developing state and many forms of insurance protection common in
other parts of the world are not yet generally available, The Group does not have full coverage for its premises
and equipment, business interruption, or third party liability in respect of property or environmental damage
arising from accidents on Group’s property or relating to Group’s operations. Until the Group obtains
adequate insurance coverage, there is a risk that the loss or destruction of certain assets could have a material
adverse effect on the Group’s operations and financial position.

Litigations
In the ordinary course of business, the Group is subject to legal actions and complaints. Management believes

that the ultimate lability, if any, arising from such actions or cornplaints, will not have a material adverse
effect on the financial condition or the results of firre operations,

Taxation contingencies in Kazakhstan

The taxation system in the RK is relatively new and is characterised by frequent changes in legislation, official
pronouncements and court decisions, which are often unclear, contradiclory and subject fo varying
interpretation by different tax authorities. Taxes are subject to review and investigation by a number of
authorities, which have the authority to impose severe fines, penalties and interest charges. A tax year remains
open for review by the tax anthorities during the five subsequent calendar years; however, under certain
circumstances & tax year may remain open longer,

These circumstances may create tax risks in the Republic of Kazakhstan that are more significant than in other
countries. Management belicves that it has provided adequately for tax liabilities based on its interpretations
of applicable Kazakhstan tax legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions. However, the
interpretations of the relevant authorities could differ and the effect on these consolidated financial statements,
if the authorities were successful in enforcing their interpretations, could be significant.

Related party transactions

Control relationship

The sole shareholder of the Group is Pioneer Capital Invest that owns 100% of ordinary shares. As at
31 December 2019, the ultimate controlling party of the Group is the Private Fund “Nazarbayev Fund”
(31 December 2018: autonomous educational organization “Nazarbayev University™).

Remuneration to the key management personnel
Total remuneration paid to the key management personnel int 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

31 December 31 December
2019 2018

Key management personnel 2,972 2,197

Transactions with the key management personnel

The outstanding balances and average interest rates as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 for transactions with
the key management personnel are as follows:

Average Average
31 December effective 31 December effective
2019 interest rate, % 2018 inferest rate, %

Consolidated statement of financial

position

Liabilities

Amounts due to customers 2,065 6.28 1,175 -
Other Habilities 634 - - -

Amounts included in profit or loss in relation to transactions with the key management personnel are as
follows:

31 December 31 December
2018 2018

Profit or loss

Fee and commission income 1

Interest expenses (6) -
Other expenses — (5)
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Fair value of financial instruments, continued

The estimates of fair value are intended to approximate the price that would be received to seli an asset, or
paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

However given the uncertainties and the use of subjective judgment, the fair value should not be interpieled
as being realisable in an immediate sale of the assets or settlement of liabilities,

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markets are based on quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments, the Group determines fair values
using other valuation techniques.

The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the price that would
be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the lizbility in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models and comparison to similar
instruments for which market observable prices exist, Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques
inclnde risk—free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other premia used in estimating discount
rates, bond and equity prices and foreign currency exchange rates. The objective of valuation lechniques is to
arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the price of the financial instrament at the reporting date that
would have been determined by market participants acting at arm’s length.

The Group uses widely recognised valuation models for determining the fair value of comman and simpler
financial instruments. Observable prices and model inputs are usually available in the market for listed debt
and equity securitics, exchange traded derivatives and simple over the counter derivatives like interest rate
swaps,

For more complex instruments, the Group uses proprietary valuation models. Some or all of the significant
inputs into these models may not be observable in the market, and are derived from market prices or rates or
are estimated based on assmptions. Example of instruments involving significant unobservable inputs
includes certain securities for which there is no active market,

The following assumptions are used by the Management to estimate the fair values of financial instruments
asat 31 December 2019:

*  discountrates of 12.0% — 13.4% and 4.4% — 5.2% are used for discounting fiture cash flows from loans
1o corporate customers denominated in KZT and USD, respectively (31 December 2018: nil);

*  discount rates of 10.0% — 40.0% are used for discounting future cash flows from loans to retail customers
(31 December 2018: 5.60 %);

*  discount rates of 0.8% — 7.4% and 0.5% ~ 9,0% are used for discounting future cash flows from current
accounts and deposits of corporate and retail custorers, respectively (31 December 2018: 0,.8% — 11.6%
and nil, respectively);

*  discount rate of 11.5% is wvsed for discounting future cash flows from debt securities issued
(31 December 2018: nil);

*  discount rate of 14.0% is used for discounting future cash flows from subordinated debt
(31 December 2018: nil).

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at 31 December 2019 and 2018, by the
level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised. The amounts are based
on the values recognised in the consolidated siatement of financial position,

As at 31 December 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial tnstruments at FVTIFL

— asseis 5,945 8,086 29,202 43,233

— Habilities - 42 — 42

Financiol assots at FVOCT

— Debt and other fixed income instruments 1,155 557,631 - 558,786
7,100 565,675 20202 601,977
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Fair value of financial instruments, continued

Fair value hierarchy, continned

As at 31 December 2018 Level 1 Levei 2 Level 3 Total

Financial instruments at FVTPL

— assets 4,839 544 - 5,383

Financial assets at FVOCI

— Debt and other fixed income instruments 839 - - 839
5,678 344 - 6,222

Securities, which are listed on KASE but which do not have an active market as at 31 December 2019, are
classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. As at 31 December 2019, the financia! instruments classified
as Level 2, include government securities for the amount of KZT 356,041 million and promissory notes from
the MI'RK in the amount of KZT 70,241 million (as ot 31 December 2018, the financial instruments classified
as Level 2 include government securities for the amount of KZT 69,377 million),

In many cases all significant inputs into the valuation techniques are wholly observable, for example by
reference to information from similar iransactions in the currency market. In cases where all inputs are not
observable, for example because there are no observable trades in 2 similar risk at the reporting date, the
Group uses valuation techniques that rely on unobservable inputs — .g. volatilities of certain underlying,
expectations of termination periods,

The fair value of loans to customers measured at FVTPL is determined using the discounted cash flows
valuation technique. The valuation model considers the present value of expected fiture cash flows from the
foreclosure of collateral, discounted using a risk-adfusted discount rate from 11.54% to 14.54%. For the
assumptions used in estimation of expected future cash flows from the foreclosure of collateral please refer
to Note 23,

The following table shows a reconciliation for the year ended 31 December 2019 for fair value measurements
in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Fevel3
Loans to
customers
measnred af
FVTPL Total

Balance at 1 January 2019 - -
Acquisition resulting from a business combination (Note 5) 26,733 26,733
Interest income 9,626 9,626
Interest paid {6,741) (6,741)
Net loss on change in fair value of loans fo customers measured at fair (416} {416)
Balance at 31 December 2019 29,202 20,202

Although the Gioup believes that its estimates of fair value are appropriate, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions could lead to different measurements of fair valge.
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Fair value of financial instruments, continued
Fair value hierarchy, continued

The following table analyses the fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value, by the level
in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorised as at 31 December 2019.

Total
Total fair  carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 values amount

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 301,431 - 301,431 301,431
Amounts due from banks and other
financial instimtions - 3,548 - 3,548 3,548
Loans to customers - 107,251 158,632 263,883 264,232
Investment securities measured at
amortised cost — 242,752 202 242,054 242,145
Other financial assets - 8,704 - 8,704 8,704
Liabilities
Amounts due to barks and other
financial institutions - 9,836 - 9,836 9,836
Amounts payable under repurchase
agreements - 6,293 - 6,293 6,293
Amounts due to customers - 790,683 - 790,683 791,624
Debt securities issued - 147,182 - 147,182 148,604
Subordinated debt securities issued - 73,136 - 73,136 72,950
Lease liabilities - 4,489 - 4.489 4,489
Otber financial liabilities - 5,297 -~ 5,297 5,297

The following table analyses the fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value, by the level in
the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorised as at 31 December 2018.

Total
Total fair  carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 values amonnt
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 55,238 - 55,238 55,238
Loans to customers - - 30 39 39

Investment securities measured at

smortised cost 103,699 - - 103,609 103,830
Other financial assets — - 130 130 130
Liabilities

Amounts due to customers - 143,953 - 143,953 143,984
Other financial Labilities — — 145 145 145

Subsequent events
Effect of COVID-19 Virus

On 15 March 2020 the government of the Republic of Kazakhstan declared a state of emergency which has
subsequently been extended to 30 April 2020 in response to the global COVID-19 virus pandemic. A number
of restrictions on the wovement of individuals within K azakhstan have been imposed, in order to reduce the
spread of the virus. This has reduced the normal cconomie activities of many businesses in the country.

Other governments across the world have imposed similar restrictions in order to limit the impuoot of the virus,
resulting in a significant reduction in global economic activity.

Global oil prices also fell sigrificantly in March 2020, and the Kazakhstan Tenge weakened against the USD

from a ratc of KZT' 382.59 1o one USD at 31 December 2019, to approximately 430 KZT to one USD at
10 April 2020,
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Subsequent events, continued
Effect of COVID=19 Virus, continued

In March 2020 the Agency for Financial Market Regulation in Kazakhstan issued a statement that certain
retail and small business borrowers of banks in Kazakhstan wouid be allowed a deferment on their overdue
loan payments due to the COVID-19 outbreak.

Management of the Group consider that the economic effects of the COVID-19 virus are likely to be
significant both globally and in Kazakhstan. This may result in a contraction in economic activity, and a fall
in asset prices in in Kazakhstan, It may also lead to a reduction in the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets
during 2020, in particular its loans to customers, whose values are sensitive to changes in the value of
underlying collateral and expected realization periods (see Nofe 23). The extent of these effects, including the
resulting impact on the Group’s financial results in 2020, is not possible to determine at the date of approval
of these financial statements.

Approximately KZT 25,865 million of Insurance Company Jusan Garant JSC total insurance exposure at
31 December 2019 relates to medical insurance, and this coverage continues to be offered by the company
during 2020. Management have considered the potential impact of the coronavirus on the company’s claims
expected during 2020, and have made a preliminary assessment that the contractual terms of its medical
insurance agreements excludes coverage of such pandemic diseases, However, the wider effects of the virus
and its effect on the Kazakhstan economy, including any resulting impact on Insurance Company Jusan
Garant JSC’s financial results in 2029, is not possible to determine at the date of approval of these financial
statements.

Other subsequent events

On 27 March 2020, the Group completed placement of debt securities with a nominal value of
KZT 20,758 million and a coupon rate of 0.1% p.a. and maturity in 2030, which was the final stage of the
financial rehabilitation of the Bank. The effect of this transaction on the consolidated statement of profit or
less and other comprehensive income has not been determined at the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements.
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